thanet

district council

Thanet District Council Statement of Accounts




Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

Contents

Narrative Report 4
Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts 37
Independent Auditors Report to the Members of Thanet District Council 38
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 43
Movement in Reserves Statement 44
Movement in Reserves Statement cont’d 45
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020 46
Cash Flow Statement 47
Notes to the Core Financial Statements 48
Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 132
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement 133
Notes to the Housing Revenue Account 134
Collection Fund Statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 138
Notes to the Collection Fund Statement 139
Glossary of Terms 143



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

Narrative Report

Narrative Report of the Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer

Financial Year ended 31st March 2020

Dear Reader,

| am pleased to present the Thanet District Council Statement of
Accounts (the Accounts) for the financial year 2019-20 and | hope
you will find them of interest.

The Accounts

The purpose of the Accounts is to present the financial performance
for the year 2019-20 and the overall financial position of the Council.
It is intended that these Accounts will provide a useful and important
source of financial information for the community, stakeholders,
Council members and other interested parties.

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA), and in conjunction with the guidelines
contained within the latest Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom for 2019-20 (The Code). The
Code is based on International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), and has been developed by the CIPFA/Local Authority
(Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) Code Board
overseen by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.

Overview

The Council has continued the trend of the past few years of adding
to its general reserves, with an overall increase of £1m for the
General Fund in 2019-20. However, our reserves remain relatively
low and this improved position has been achieved despite the
overspending or underachievement of income targets against a
number of key budget headings.

The strengthening of reserves in 2019-20 is more timely and
important than ever, as the Council faces the financial pressure
associated with the economic and social strains and restrictions
resulting from Covid-19. The Covid-19 crisis has had a significant
financial impact on both the Council and across the district. Since
March 2020, the Council's focus has been on the immediate
coordinated response to support our residents during the lockdown
period. Plans are now underway to implement a set of initiatives
that are key to managing the recovery of the district and to plan
ahead for the longer-term challenges that will begin to emerge as
lockdown restrictions are lifted.

These additional costs have not had a dramatic impact on the
financial outturn for 2019-20, and these Accounts, as the pandemic
only started to make a notable impact on the public’'s and
businesses’ behaviour in the last two weeks of March. However,
Covid-19 will have a dramatic financial effect on all of local
government, and Thanet's finances in 2020-21. Given the
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uncertainty around the full extent of the economic consequences at
this stage, it is difficult to estimate with confidence the likely impact
on the Council’s financial position. The Government has allocated
emergency Covid-19 funding to local authorities but this is unlikely
to be sufficient to cover the estimated budget gap. Cabinet
recommended to Council that £3m of earmarked reserves be
allocated to cover the estimated gap, since this was agreed an
additional £1.1m has been announced by Government, however as
noted above, Thanet's reserves were relatively low prior to
Covid-19 and future financial plans will have to reflect a strategy of
replenishing and rebuilding of reserves.

Other Local Government Funding Issues

The government has announced that the Fair Funding Review
(FFR) and revisions to the Business Rates Retention (BRR)
scheme will not be implemented in April 2021 as originally planned.
The overall lack of information available on local government
finance beyond April 2020 challenges long-term and sustainable
financial decision making.

The Narrative Report

This Narrative Report provides information about Thanet, including
the key issues affecting the Council and its accounts. It aims to
provide key detail to support the Accounts by presenting a
transparent and clear overview of the Council's financial position
and performance for the year, in addition to outlining its prospects
for future years.

The narrative report details the following information and is
structured as follows:

Introduction to Thanet

Key Information About the Council

Financial Overview

Financial Performance 2019-20

2020-21 Budget and Future Financial Outlook
Our Priorities and Objectives

How the Council is performing

Governance

. Risk Management

10. Accounting Statements

© NN PRE

Tim Willis
Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer
31 August 2020
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1. Introduction to Thanet

Thanet includes the towns of Margate,
Broadstairs and Ramsgate as well as a
number of pretty villages. It is situated on the
most north-easterly edge of Kent with coast
on three sides, covering around 40 square
miles. Thanet enjoys an attractive
combination of coast and countryside making
it a popular holiday and day-trip destination.

The Isle of Thanet is the major part of the
district. Formed over 7,000 years ago it was
once separated from the mainland by the
Wantsum Channel. The district is a unique
coastal area, with 19 miles of nationally and
internationally recognised coastline and Blue
Flag award winning beaches and bays.
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The district is easily accessible with excellent road links to the national motorway network. It takes just 75 minutes from London’s St Pancras
International aboard HS1 and rail services link Thanet to other London stations and mainland Europe (Eurostar) via Ashford International.
Cross-Channel services are available from the Port of Dover and Eurotunnel.

Thanet has a resident population of 141,900 (Mid 2019 estimate'), which is growing at approximately 1% per annum with the majority of
residents in the resorts of Ramsgate, Broadstairs and Margate. Birchington and Westgate are the other two main postal towns within the
district.

54‘ "

s. Fodl h'ﬁ«,,—-‘grumﬂm

Successful regeneration such as the reimagined Dreamland amusement park and the ongoing success of Turner Contemporary, continue to
enhance the district’s visitor economy which was worth pre-covid an estimated £320 million to the local economy.

! Source of Data https://www.nomisweb.co.uk/reports/Imp/la/1946157320/report.aspx 2town=thanet#tabrespop
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Thanet is however the most deprived local authority district in Kent as measured by the Index of Multiple Deprivation and nationally Thanet is

ranked at 34 out of 326 authorities (2019).? 21.4% of the district's Local Super Output Areas (LSOA) are amongst the most deprived 10%
areas in England.

Mosaic Profile for Thanet and Kent

2 Source of data https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/english-indices-of-deprivation-2019
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% of population
Experian Group Thanet Kent
Senior Security Elderly people with assets who are enjoying a comfortable retirement 17.10% _ 11.00% -
Transient Renters Single people privately renting low cost homes for the short term 15.70% _ 5.80% -
Family Basics Farmilies with limited resources who have to budget to make ends mest 10.80% - &.80% -
Aspiring Homemakers Younger households settling down in housing priced within their means 10.50% - 12.70% -
Vintage Value Elderly people reliant on support to meet financial or practical needs 9.70% - 5.20% -
Suburban Stability Mature suburban owners living in settled lives in midrange housing &.00% - T.00% -
Rental Hubs Educated young people privately renting in urban neighbourhoods 6.90% - T.00% -
Modest Traditions Mature homeowners of value homes enjoying stable lifestyles 6.20% - 3.30% .
Domestic Success Thriving families who are busy bringing up children and following careers 3.80% . 10.10% -
Prestige Positions Established families in large detached homes Living upmarket lifestyles 3.50% . 9.00% -
Rural Reality Householders living in inexpensive homes in village communities 2.90% . T.20% -
Municipal Challenge Urban renters of social housing facing an array of challenges 2.20% I 1.40% I
Urban Cohesion Residents of settled urban communities with a strong sense of identity 1.10% I 1.60% I
Country Living Well off ovwwners in rural locations enjoying the benefits of Country life 0.80% I 8.50% -
City Prosperity High status city dwellers living in central locations and persuing careers with high rewards 0.00% 0.40% |

Mosaic is a classification system designed by Experian to profile the characteristics of the UK population. Each household in the UK is classified as belonging to one of 15 groups and 66
types.They describe the residents of a postcode in terms of their typical demographics, their behaviours, their lifestyle characteristics and their attitudes. This helps to ensure that the right
services are provided to the areas that need them.

The mosaic analysis shows that there is a broad range of demography across the district, but that Thanet's population has a significant
proportion of elderly residents and also those with relatively low or modest incomes and resources.  Partnership working through initiatives
such as the Multi-agency Task Force (MTF) are being driven by the Council to help address some of the key socio-economic issues within its
most deprived wards.
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2. Key Information About the Council

Council Services

Thanet District Council is the primary local authority in the district, providing key services such as waste collection, housing, leisure and culture,
and planning.

Local government can be complex. Here's some of the things that Thanet District Council does and what the County Council and Town and
Parish councils do.

Thanet District Council

Kent County Council

Town and Parish Councils

Building Control

Car parks

Collection of Council Tax and Business
Rates

Elections

Environmental protection

Grounds Maintenance

Housing Benefit and Council Tax
support

Housing*

Licensing*

Local Plans & Planning Applications
Maritime & Harbour Operations
Parks and playgrounds

Public Conveniences

Street cleansing

Tourism

Waste and recycling

Arts and Museums
Education
Footpaths
Highways
Libraries
Recreation:
Social Services
Strategic Planning
Street Lighting
Trading Standards
Transport

Waste Disposal
Youth Services

Allotments

Market Stalls

Local Events and Programmes
Civic Events

Christmas Lights and Trees
Additional Grass Cutting

Town and Parish Flower Beds
Britain in Bloom
Neighbourhood Plans

The services marked *' in the table are statutory functions that we are required to provide by law.
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https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/building-control/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/maps-of-car-parks-in-thanet/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/council-tax/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/business-rates/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/business-rates/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/elections-and-voting/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/environmental-protection/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/housing-benefit/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/council-tax-support/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/council-tax-support/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/housing/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/other-licenses-available/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/planning-policy/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/planning/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/locations/port-of-ramsgate/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/contacts/parks-and-open-spaces/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/public-toilets/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/clean-streets/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/tourism-information/
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/services/waste-and-recycling/
https://www.kent.gov.uk/leisure-and-community/arts
https://www.kent.gov.uk/education-and-children
https://www.kent.gov.uk/waste-planning-and-land/public-rights-of-way
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel
https://www.kent.gov.uk/leisure-and-community/libraries
https://www.kent.gov.uk/leisure-and-community
https://www.kent.gov.uk/social-care-and-health
https://www.kent.gov.uk/waste-planning-and-land
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/what-we-look-after/street-lights
https://www.kent.gov.uk/business/trading-standards
https://www.kent.gov.uk/roads-and-travel/travelling-around-kent
https://www.kent.gov.uk/waste-planning-and-land/rubbish-and-recycling
https://www.kent.gov.uk/education-and-children/young-people
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Political Structure

@ Conservative

@ Labour Thanet has 23 Wards and 56 Councillors serve the district
and its residents. Local Councillors are elected by the
community to decide how the Council should carry out

Thanet Independant Councillors

@ Green . Lo .
o demendant various activities as well as to represent local interests.
ndependan . . .
P District elections take place every four years, when all of
@® Vacancy

the Ward Councillors are elected.

The Council has adopted the Leader and Cabinet model
as defined in the Local Government and Public
Involvement in Health Act 2007. The Leader has the
responsibility for the appointment of Cabinet members,
allocation of portfolios and delegation of executive
functions.

In October 2019 the leadership of the Council changed
from minority Conservative control to minority Labour
control. The Leader of the Council is ClIr Rick Everitt and
the Deputy Leader is Clir Helen Whitehead.

Cabinet members are held to account by a system of scrutiny which is set out in the constitution. Committees carrying out this function in
2019-20 were the Overview & Scrutiny Panel and Governance & Audit Committee.

In addition the task groups, advisory groups and scrutiny reviews that took place during 2019-20 included:

e [Fees and Charges - Cabinet Advisory Group e Climate Change - Working Party
e Health and Wellbeing - Cabinet Advisory Group e Gypsy and Traveller - Scrutiny Review

The Council moved quickly through the coronavirus pandemic to implement a virtual meeting solution and is an example of best practice for the
running of virtual meetings via google for the Association of Democratic Services Officers.
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Management Structure

Supporting the work of Councillors is the Chief Executive
organisational structure of the Council headed by the
Corporate Management Team, led by Chief Executive
Madeline Homer.

Deputy Chief Director of
Executive and s151 Operational and
Officer Commercial Services

Director of Corporate

Governance

People
The Council employs 478 staff (478 in 2019-20) in full and part time positions and the profile is as follows:

The Council's staff are essential in
enabling the achievement of the
150 ® Male @ Female Corporate Statement. This year, the
Council has focused on the Learning
and Development element of the
People Strategy. As part of this, we
have worked to maximise the use of
the Apprenticeship Levy and, as a
result, 28 new and existing employees
have successfully commenced
apprenticeship programmes during this
period.

Age Gender

100

50

<21 21-30 31-40 41-50 51-60 >60

The focus towards the end of the financial year moved towards refreshing the People Strategy and ensuring that it continues to support and
develop staff in line with the aims of the Corporate Statement and this will continue into the next financial year.

12
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3. Financial Overview

Context and Financial Environment

Funding Gap Locally Raised [l Govenment funding
25

£9,700,000 £6,400,000
20

£10,800,000

£ £13,300,000
[

£5,800,000

2010 2019

Furthermore, the budget was set within the context of continuing
considerable uncertainty on the future of the local government
finance system, making long-term decision making difficult.

Whilst setting the budget for 2019-20 the Council had to
manage further government funding reductions.

This continued a trend of reductions in support for local
government during a decade of austerity, with the Council
receiving £7.5m less government funding than it did in
2010.

Thanet District Council has had the largest fall in spending
power over the last 10 years, compared with every Council
in Kent. We now have only 62% of the spending power that
we had in 2010.

~
56% | 11% ! 28%

decrease increase decrease
In in Locally In total funding
Government raised
funding funding

. -
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TDC Core Funding

25

20

15

fm

10

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

B New Homes Bonus [ Business Rates Growth [} Business Rates Baseline
B Revenue Support [ Freeze grant [l Council Tax

The chart above shows how the Council's core funding has reduced in recent years, and also how its makeup has changed over this time. In
2013-14 the Council was receiving more than £6m of Revenue Support Grant, a general grant to support councils’ operations, however this has
reduced to almost nothing by 2019-20. Also, the Council's New Homes Bonus allocation, a grant intended to provide financial incentives and
reward for housing growth, has reduced from £1.9m in 2017-18 to only £600k in 2019-20.

14
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B Earmarked Reserves [ General Fund Balance - unallocated

15

10

£m

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Thanet's reserves holdings have strengthened
over the last five years.

The chart above shows the improvement in
the Council's General Fund reserves over the
past five financial years, with reserves and
balances rising to £14.5m at the end of
2019-20, compared to the 2015-16 low water
mark of £8.1m. This represents a £6.4m or
79% increase over the five year period.

In particular, 2018-19 saw a £3.7m increase in
reserves, largely backed by a one-off windfall
arising from additional Business Rates income
retained in Thanet, as a result of participating
in the Kent 100% Business Rates Retention
Pilot. It should be noted that approximately
£2m of this Business Rates funding is
allocated in the capital programme to be
utilised to finance Parkway railway station.

Despite this improved position, the Council continues to face and meet major financial challenges. The Council’s reserves still remain low,
compared to our historical levels, other district Councils and the risks we face. This improved but yet still relatively low position is supported by
analysis undertaken within the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy'’s financial resilience index. Further commentary on how
Covid-19 is expected to affect the Council's reserves is included in the following sections of this narrative report.

15
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300

The blue dot on the chart above represents

TDC's relative reserve holdings at the end of
200 2018-19 in comparison to other shire districts
(41st lowest out of 201), in that our total General
Fund reserves of £13.5m, at that time,
represented 77% of our net revenue budget.

%
Thanet

100 77 In comparison, the average for a district Council
® is almost double Thanet's, at 146%. Therefore if

Thanet's reserves were at the average level for

districts, our reserves would be closer to £24m.

Thanet

All Shire Districts (201)

2019-20 Financial Planning Savings

A net budget of £16.7m for 2019-20 was agreed by Cabinet and Council in February 2019. The setting of a balanced budget was largely
underpinned by the estimated financial implications relating to a number of savings, efficiencies and increase to fees and charges. Budget
changes exceeding £1.0m were approved by members, with key savings including:

e Ramsgate Port - £130k (£230k in future years) e Deletion of Business Transformation post - £70k
e Organisational efficiencies £250k e Fees and Charges Review - £189k

e Toilets and facilities - £175k e Efficiencies in East Kent Services - £25k

e Reduced homelessness growth - £150k

Members also agreed to a £4.95 increase in council tax to balance the 2019-20 budget.

16
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For the HRA, the Government introduced a number of changes to the social housing market via the Welfare Reform and Work Act and the
Housing and Planning Act during 2016, which had a direct impact upon future funding and costs to the HRA, notably the requirement to reduce
rents by 1% a year for four years commencing 2016-17. 2019-20 was the last year that these reductions were applied, with rent increases
reverting to a maximum of Consumer Price Index (CPI) + 1% for 2020-21 onwards.

Financial Performance 2019-20

General Fund Revenue

The General Fund covers all income and expenditure included in the day-to-day running of the Council and key services that the Council
provide. This includes: refuse collection; recycling; street cleansing; maritime facilities; housing advice; planning & building control; licensing;

and community development.

Services are organised by directorate/departments and 2019-20 budget performance is summarised below:

Service Area

Chief Executive

Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer

Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer - Dreamland revaluation
statutory accounting adjustment

Director of Corporate Governance

Director of Corporate Governance - Dreamland revaluation
Director of Operational & Commercial Services

Directorate Sub-Total

Contributions to/from reserves (excluding planned)

Total Net Expenditure

17

2019-20
Budget
£'000s
251
4,124

1,425

10,843
16,643

0
16,643

2019-20
Actual

£'000s
306
4,057
(19,497)

1,782
19,497
11,666
17,811

275
18,086

2019-20
Variance
£°'000s
55
(67)
(19,497)

357
19,497
823
1,168
275
1,443
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The table above differs from the management accounts as presented to the Corporate Management Team and Members in that it includes
recharges, capital charges and other accounting adjustments. The £19.5m revaluation loss in respect of Dreamland is charged to the cost of
services, but is then reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account through the Movement in Reserves Statement in accordance with proper
accounting practice, so has no impact on the taxpayer.

The key reasons for the budget variances are:

Chief Executive - Year-end adjustment relating to Pensions £62Kk, offset by other minor variances (E7k)

Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer

Higher homelessness costs including housing benefit have
resulted in a £431k overspend, offset by one off funding
(E59K)

A change in practice for how the Council accounts for the
annual leave that is owed to or from employees at the end of
the financial year (£66k),

year end accounting for assets £224k,

Corporate Governance

Reduced property income £475k,

Lower building control income and increased costs £307Kk,
Reduced land charges income £138k,

Increased corporate property repairs costs covered by
reserve/external contributions £50k,

Increased costs relating to the May 2019 Council elections,
covered from reserves contributions £84k,

Operational Services

An underspend on open spaces (£88k),

an underspend on safer neighbourhoods (£106k),
an underspend on port and harbour (£66k),
various other overs and unders £16k,

year end account for pensions (£2,299k),

accounting for depreciation £865k,

increased contribution to the bad debt provision as a result
of Covid-19 and its impact on income recovery £243k,
change in reserve contributions £640k and

other minor variances £46k

accounting adjustment for Dreamland (£19,497k)

Increased cost in legal services £36k,
Savings in Facilities (£33k),

year end accounting for assets (£1,038k),
year end accounting for depreciation (£180k),
year end accounting for pensions £47
Dreamland revaluation £19,497k

year end accounting for assets (£6k),
year end accounting for depreciation (£685k),
year end accounting for pensions £1,75
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Financing of the budget comes from local taxation and government grants and budget performance is summarised as follows:

Financing 2019-20 Budget 2019-20 Actual 2019-20 Variance
£°000s £°000s £°000s
Council Tax 10,205 10,205 0
Collection Fund Surplus 100 113 13
Retained Business Rates 5,642 7,058 1,416
New Homes Bonus Grant 586 600 14
Other Grants 110 110 0
Total 16,643 18,086 1,443

Reserves

Overall, General Fund reserves increased by almost £1.0m in 2019-20, with contributions made primarily due to additional business rates
income (£280k), slippage on capital projects (E455k) and other planned items, resulting in total reserves and balances now sitting at £13.5m.
This is an improvement on previous years, but as previously stated reserves are still relatively low compared to historical levels, other district
Councils and the risks the Council faces. Further detail is providing in the following sections on the future challenges the Council faces and the
resulting impact on our reserves.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

The HRA reflects costs and income of the Council’'s Landlord service in respect of Council housing. This is a ring-fenced account and all
entries to the account are governed by law. The service had a £0.66m deficit in the year mainly due to increased rental income offset by
increased management fee and depreciation charge to Major Repairs Reserve. The deficit was taken from the working balance on the account
which is now £8.65m (£9.3m in 2018-19).
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Financial Management - Capital
Programme performance and cost profile are included in this section.

General Fund Capital Programme 2019-20 Budget 2019-20 Actual 2019-20 Variance
£000s £000s £000s
Deputy Chief Executive (incl East Kent Services) 6,057 3,488 2,569
Corporate Governance 3,841 178 3,663
Operational Services 5,939 2,276 3,663
Total Expenditure 15,837 5,942 9,895

Flexible Use of Capital Receipts payments of £496k and additional capital grants of £449k were also made in the year, not being shown in the
table above.

38% of the revised budget was spent during the year and this reflects several projects where slippage has occurred and as a consequence
outcomes have been re-profiled to match revised delivery dates. In particular, £0.888m of the carry-over is for Disabled Facility Grants,
£1.111m is for Homelessness Accommodation, £3.000m is for Office Accommodation, and £1.475m is for Ramsgate Port Berth 4/5
Replacement.

The following 2019-20 expenditure for new General Fund assets has been recognised in the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020:

e Foy House, High Street, Margate £519Kk - to be used for temporary accommeodation for statutory homeless households

e Office, IT and Security Equipment £165k - £59k Office (printers, copiers and other office equipment), £82k IT (In-Cab Information
System for Waste Vehicles and other infrastructure), and £24k Security (CCTV, alarm system, viewing station).

e Operational Services Vehicles & Equipment £134k - including £69k vans for Sport/Leisure, Street Scene & Parking Enforcement,
£30k Trade Waste Truck and £24k Open Spaces facilities and equipment.

20



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

HRA Capital Programme 2019-20 Budget 2019-20 Actual 2019-20 Variance
£°000s £'000s £'000s
Major Works 5,710 1,898 3,812
Margate Housing Intervention 2,813 1,610 1,203
New Build Programme 8,266 4,973 3,293
Acquisition Programmes 2,780 1,979 801
St Johns Crescent 95 127 (32)
Total Expenditure 19,664 10,587 9,077

53.84% of the total programme was expended in year with several programmes being re-profiled for delivery in 2020-21.

The major works programmes consist of continued refurbishment of the Council’'s housing stock to ensure that they continue to conform to
decent homes standards. Key areas of spend have been on kitchen & bathroom replacements and fire precaution works. Across the other
programmes the Council has renovated or acquired 8 units of accommodation which have been added to its housing stock in 2019-20. A
further 7 units were acquired in the year but were not ready for occupation by the end of the year and an additional 35 units have commenced
construction and are forecast for completion in 2020-21.

Prudential Borrowing and Capital Receipts

The Council's Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for
from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of the Council's indebtedness and so its underlying borrowing need. As at
31 March 2020 the Council's CFR was £54.622m (Note 36) and its external borrowings were £25.025m (Note 22).

During the year the Council utilised its capital receipts balance to part-fund its capital programme (Note 30), and also added £2.331m from
asset disposals. This included HRA disposal proceeds of £2.058m. Of the remaining £273k, the main disposals were for land at Royal
Crescent, Margate (£130k) and former toilets and land at Beresford Gap (£52k).
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Net Worth
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The net worth of the Council has decreased by £18m mainly as a result of the reclassification and subsequent downward revaluation of
Dreamland from a Heritage Asset to a Current Asset Held for Sale (E19m), which was sold in December 2020. A further £3m for CPO
settlement and general increases to the value of the Council’s fixed assets (E7m) have been offset by a £4m increase in the Pension Liability.
The Council has also seen a £1m increase in its usable reserves:

31 March 2019

£m

Long term assets 284
Net current assets (current assets less current liabilities) 26
Long term liabilities (including pension liabilities) (114)
Net Assets 196
Represented by:

Usable reserves a7
Unusable reserves 149
Total Reserves 196

31 March 2020

£m
269
26
(117)
178

48
130
178

Long term assets are generally valued in the balance sheet at fair value for their existing use, or highest and best use for surplus assets and
investment properties.

A £4m increase in the net pension liability to £90.4m (£86.3m as at 31 March 2019) is included in the statements as calculated by the actuary to
the Kent County Council Pension Fund. This represents an assessment of the Council’'s proportion of the net assets and liabilities within the
fund that is matched by a pension reserve in the balance sheet and therefore has no immediate effect on the financial position of the Council as
at 31 March 2020. The Council relies and places assurance on the professional judgement of the actuary and the assumptions used to
calculate this valuation.
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5. 2020-21 Budget and Future Financial Outlook
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General

The 2020-21 General Fund budget of £17.1m was agreed at the Council meeting on 6 February 2020. It incorporated £730k of income
generation and efficiency proposals to bridge the funding gap. These included:

Fees and charges £208k

Property Maintenance £100k - reduction in under-utilised
budget

Treasury Management £155k - increase level of internal
borrowing

Deletion of Waste and Recycling Education Officer Post

Deletion of Open Spaces Supervisor Post £31k

Commercial waste income £25k - increase reflecting
second year of operation

Planning fee income £40k - growth in demand

Green Waste Collection £40k - growth in demand for
service

£36k - with a proportion of the work being picked up by the .
Enforcement Education Officer, Community Development
and Communications teams

ICT |/ Digital Review £20k - efficiencies from the integration
of ICT functions into the Digital team

However, the in-year delivery of these savings have been compromised by Covid as explained further below, this will be monitored throughout
the 2020-21 financial year and management action will be taken where possible. In addition to the savings items, the budget also included
additional resources for Operational Services including:

e |nvestmentin 10 new permanent environmental operatives,

e Plans to refurbish public toilets,

e A renewed focus on climate change including the appointment of a Climate Change Officer
After agreeing these savings and growth items the Council agreed an increase of £4.95 in the Band D equivalent for Thanet District Council's
element of council tax, in order to balance the 2020-21 budget as required by statute.

Beyond 2020-21, the future for local government funding remains very uncertain, with no information available on funding from April 2021
onwards. The current four year Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR) period came to an end in 2019-20, with the CSR 2020 delayed until
the autumn of 2020 because of Covid-19. In addition, the Government have announced the:

Fair Funding Review to examine the relative needs and
allocation of resources between Authorities

e national move to 75% Business Rates retention, °

e resetting of baselines from which Business Rates funding
allocations will be determined
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The timing of the implementation of all of the above remains unknown and apart from this it has provided virtually no indication of the level of
funding Local Authorities can expect to receive for 2021-22 and beyond.

The 2020-21 budget approved by Council in February 2020, included the following projected budget gaps across the medium term.

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Budget Deficit - 897 1,030 1,022

Work will now commence on addressing the deficit for 2021-22 onwards and if permanent deliverable savings can be realised in 2021-22 it will
make a significant contribution to reducing the deficit thereafter. However, due to the uncertainty around the future of local government funding
and the potential of ongoing financial implications of Covid-19, at this point, budget estimates for future years could significantly change.

The items set out below are considered the main issues that will have an impact on the Council’s budget strategy and financial planning in the
medium term.

Covid-19

The Covid-19 crisis has had a significant financial impact on both the Council and across the district. Since March 2020, the Council's focus
has been on the immediate coordinated response to support our residents during the lockdown period.

Business rates relief and grants for businesses in the retail, hospitality and leisure sectors have been administered in line with government
guidelines helping more than 3,000 businesses in the district, allocating more than £34m of financial support. Additional council tax relief has
been given to recipients of council tax support through the government’s hardship fund.

A community hub was set up in collaboration with partners and volunteers to support vulnerable residents, ensuring food and other essential
items were delivered to those with particular health conditions. The Council has provided accommodation for all the district's known rough
sleepers and continued to provide housing to others where its duty to do so had ceased.

It is anticipated that the pandemic will have a significant impact on the Council’'s ability to collect income, both from taxpayers and services
such as car parking. There are also additional cost pressures as the Council responds to the outbreak and provides support to the most
vulnerable residents.

The Council is facing unprecedented challenges as a result of Covid-19. Due to the timing of the pandemic and national economic and social
restrictions there was little financial impact on the 2019-20 financial position as the pandemic was declared late in March and therefore the
2019-20 Accounts are largely unaffected. There will however be significant challenges in the year ahead and potentially future years. Given the

24



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

uncertainty around the full extent of the economic impact at this stage, it is difficult to estimate with confidence the likely impact on the Council’'s
financial position. The Government has allocated emergency Covid-19 funding to local authorities but this is unlikely to be sufficient to cover the
estimated budget gap.

Cabinet received a 2020-21 budget monitoring report on 30 July 2020, which it recommended to Council for approval at its meeting on 10
September 2020. The report estimated that the overspend for the year could be £5.7m, 32% against the net revenue budget, which after
consideration of expected government support in the region of £2.6m resulted in a forecast budget gap of £3.05m for 2020-21. Since this report
was agreed by Council, Government has agreed an additional £1.1m in funding for the 2020-21 financial year.

It has been assumed at this stage that the financial impact of Covid-19 will be contained within 2020-21, and as such presents a one-off funding
issue. As such, the Cabinet agreed to the allocation of reserves to bridge the gap rather than through service reductions or increases in
income. If there are any on-going effects on the Council’s finances these will be picked up in the 2021-22 budget process and 2021-25 Medium
Term Financial Strategy.

Moreover, as a billing authority the Council's cash flow is subject to pressure as it continues to pay precepting authorities their shares of
budgeted business rates and council tax income not taking into account any reduction in collection rates. The government has introduced short
term measures to provide immediate relief and daily cash flow monitoring is being undertaken for early identification of pressure points.

Plans are now underway to implement a set of initiatives that are key to managing the recovery of the district and to plan ahead for the
longer-term challenges that will begin to emerge as lockdown restrictions are lifted.

East Kent Housing and the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

After discovering problems with some health and safety procedures, Thanet District Council, along with the other three Council owners
(Canterbury City Council, Dover District Council, and Folkestone & Hythe District Council) proposed to close EKH and deliver housing services
themselves. In October 2019 tenants and leaseholders were consulted and asked for their views on the future of EKH and the results showed
an overwhelming desire to disband EKH and for the Councils to take on its role. In February 2020 all four Council owners agreed that the
management of Council housing stock should be brought back in-house and that a termination of the management agreement with EKH should
be negotiated and concluded as soon as practicable.

Work is underway between the Councils and EKH to create a smooth transition process and in the meantime housing and support services for
tenants continue to be provided by EKH. The planned transfer date is 1 October 2020. Cabinet considered a revised 2020-21 HRA budget
report at its meeting on 30 July 2020 and recommended it to Council for approval on 10 September. The report sets out the structure for the
new service including the deployment of additional resources to ensure the service priorities, objectives and requirements are delivered whilst
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maintaining a financially sustainable HRA. A comprehensive review of the 30 year Business Plan will be undertaken prior to setting the

2021-22 budget.

Climate Change

The Council passed a motion to declare a Climate Emergency on 11th July 2019. This Council has resolved to:

e Declare a climate emergency;

e Pledge to do what is within our powers and resources to make
Thanet District Council carbon neutral by 2030, taking into account
both production and consumption emissions;

e Call on Westminster to provide the powers and resources to
make the 2030 target possible;

Going forwards the Council has a role as:

e Continue to work with partners across the County and region to
deliver this new goal through all relevant strategies;

e Investigate all possible sources of external funding and match
funding to support this commitment

e A service provider by delivering services that are resource efficient, less carbon intensive, resilient and that protect those who are

most vulnerable to climate impacts;

e An estate manager by ensuring that our own buildings and operations are resource efficient, use clean energy, and prepared for the

impacts of a changing climate.

e A community leader by helping local people and businesses to be smarter about their energy use and to prepare for climate impacts.

An action plan has been developed to address the three main identified focus areas as follows:

e Reducing emissions and improving energy efficiency through the Council's operations, and supporting the community to do this, within

the powers of the Council.

e Supporting and protecting the District's nature and biodiversity

e Improving the management of waste and resources across the District

It is inevitable that further resources will need to be prioritised to deliver the Council's climate change objectives. The Council calls on
Westminster to provide the powers and resources to make the 2030 target possible.
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6. Our Priorities and Objectives

The Council’'s Core Business Objectives set out the direction of travel for the Council for the next four years laying the strong foundations that
will benefit, shape and grow the district. In 2019, residents told us that clean streets,

feeling safe and thriving towns were important to them and the Core Business
Objectives address each of these top topics from the 2019 residents survey.

Growth

We will continue to ensure we work to consider new ways to generate income and
invest our current resources. Delivering a Council that is financially strong to

discharge its services and invest in the growth of the District.

What we plan to do:

® Through partnership working promote Thanet's unique
selling points to encourage local enterprise and inward
investment.

® Be a strong voice for Thanet at the Kent and Medway
Economic Partnership.

® Constructively explore approaches for Community Wealth
Building - such as the Preston Model.
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Contribute to the creation of a Coastal Prospectus which will
inform the South East Local Enterprise Partnerships’s Local
Industrial Strategy.

Refresh the Council's Economic Growth Strategy.
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including the
local

Lobby for infrastructure
Parkway Station, to support
enterprise and housing growth.

improvements
inward investment,

Continue to look for a viable future for the Port of Ramsgate
and Royal Harbour for the benefit of the town and the wider
district.

Engage with businesses in the creative industries to identify
opportunities for growth in the district and promote Thanet
through the Thames Estuary Production Corridor ambitious
industrial vision.

Environment

Having a clean and well-maintained environment remains important to us. We will be clear
with our residents on what we will do and what our asks of residents are - cultivating a
shared responsibility approach. Delivering a clean and accessible living environment,
maintaining an emphasis on prevention but where necessary we will use an enforcement

approach.

What we plan to do:

Undertake a full and thorough review of our public toilet
facilities including providing incentives for businesses to
make good quality facilities available to the public.

Improve collaboration with KCC around relevant services
and explore opportunities for introducing a park and ride
scheme in Thanet.

Maintain strong enforcement action in the areas of planning,
building control and parking. Strengthening our already tough
response to flytipping and maintaining the zero tolerance
policy towards littering.
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Encourage the rejuvenation of our high streets by supporting
the growth of our creative industries.

We will further support the regeneration of our High Streets
by working with partners.

Continue to promote tourism in Thanet and the increase in
jobs that this will bring to the District.

® Maximise the return on our assets and services
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Continue the education programmes in schools and the
wider public areas to cultivate a shared responsibility
approach to waste and littering.

We will review the recycling service and continue engaging
with the community to increase the district's recycling rates.

Improve the efficiency of emptying schedules - including
maximising the use of smart bins.

Extend the use of mechanical street sweeping equipment.

Communities

Protect and enhance where possible our parks, beaches
and open spaces for the benefit of current and future
residents.

Continue to progress the Local Plan to adoption.

Having agreed on a climate emergency we will work to be
carbon neutral by 2030 and promote awareness of our local
wildlife, habitats and the wider environment.

Through effective partnership working with both the public sector agencies and the community, we will provide leadership and direction across
the District and the region to ensure everyone is working to the same goal. Delivering high-quality housing, safer communities and enhancing
the health and wellbeing of our residents.

What we plan to do:

Plan to set up a housing development company, to work
towards building the necessary high quality and
energy-efficient housing to meet the needs of existing and
future communities.

Improve standards and safety in homes across all tenures.

Work to prevent homelessness and increase housing
options including additional social housing.

Aim to reduce the number of rough sleepers on our streets.

Work with our partners to deliver a range of community
safety initiatives across the District, taking tough action to
tackle anti-social behaviour.
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Work in partnership with the community and Public Sector
Agencies to seek new ways of working to improve or jointly
deliver services.

Work with the Boundary Commission to ensure that the
number of Councillors is appropriate to the district size and
needs.

Promote the formation of a Margate Town Council to devolve
decision making to a local level.

Work with Town and Parish Councils, exploring the potential
for devolving services where possible.

We will work with our communities to foster a shared
responsibility and increase our community engagement.
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7. How the Council is Performing

Performance against our priorities is reported to Members and published on-line on a quarterly basis. The Council’'s annual performance
outturn report will set out the Council's performance against its key performance indicators for 2019-20. For the 2019-20 financial year, the
performance report is being measured against the Council's Corporate Plan (2015-2019). For the 2020-21 financial year, the performance report
will be measured against the agreed 2019-20 Corporate Statement.

The performance at the Q3 stage is set out here and is summarised

in the following table. Section of Report nnﬂ

Of the 16 reported performance indicators, 16 were at or above

target, 3 were within 5% of target but 5 were below target. Clean and Welcoming Environment 2 1 3

Outside these performance indicators, there was serious concern Supporting Neighbourhoods 1 0 5
over the performance of East Kent Housing. Non-compliance with

tenant health and safety requirements led to all four East Kent Promoting Inward Investment and Jab Creation 0 0 3
authorities deciding to bring housing management services back in Statistical Information 2 2 5
house. Services are currently planned to be returned to this Council

on 1 October 2020. Total 5 3 16

Examples of major projects and achievements that have also contributed to
these priorities are shown below:
Turner Prize

The Tumner Prize 2019 was hosted in Margate by the Turner Contemporary
between 28 September 2019 and 12 January 2020.

The Turner Prize is one of the best known prizes for the visual arts in the
world and Turner Contemporary and Margate was the sixth location outside
of London to host the Turner Prize, following Hull, Liverpool, Gateshead,
Londonderry and Glasgow.

On Tuesday 3 December 2019, the eyes of the world’'s media were on the
town for the glittering awards ceremony at Dreamland. This Prize provided
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us with a once in a lifetime opportunity to raise the profile of Margate and
the wider district at a regional, national and international level, celebrating
Thanet as a key cultural destination. Of equal importance is ensuring that
there is a positive legacy in the district that extends beyond the life of the
exhibition.

Thanet District Council worked with key partners in preparation for such a
huge event. A dedicated operational plan was in place to ensure that
residents and visitors had a positive experience during their time in the
town. Staff from the Council, Turner Contemporary and Dreamland also got
together on Friday 20 September to take part in a litter pick.

Landlord and Tenant Service

On 17 February 2020 Cabinet formally agreed to bring the management of
the Councils’ housing stock in house. The service is currently run by East
Kent Housing (EKH), an Arms Length Management Organisations that is
owned equally by Canterbury City Council, Dover District Council,
Folkestone & Hythe District Council and Thanet District Council. The
decision to close EKH was proposed after discovering problems with some
health and safety procedures. The results of consultation with residents
showed an overwhelming desire to disband EKH and for the Councils to
take on its role.

The Councils are transitioning to the new in-house service delivery model
and the new service will go-live on 1st October 2020.

Thanet Parkway

The Council has committed to contribute up to £2m towards the
construction of a new parkway train station.

Beaches

Thanet has once again been named as having some of the best beaches in
Britain as results from Keep Britain Tidy’s annual Blue Flag and Seaside
Awards are announced. Thanet has increased its number of award winning
beaches by 40%, going from 10 in 2018 to 14 in 2019.
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These awards are quality marks for Thanet's beaches and mean that those
visiting can be sure that they are clean, safe and meet the highest
environmental standards, as well as the tough international bathing water
quality standards.

Tackling Homelessness

657 households were supported to prevent their homelessness during
2019-20. Use of temporary accommodation reduced from 104 cases at the
end of April 2019 to 83 cases at the end of April 2020. Rough sleeping
reduced from 23 people (November 2018) to 17 people (November 2019)

The work the Council undertakes to tackle homeslessness was recognised
when Thanet RISE team won the ‘Team of the Year prize at the Kent
Housing Group Excellence Awards. The RISE team stands for Rough
sleeper Intervention, Support and Empowerment. It was set up to address
health and wellbeing as these can often be barriers for rough sleepers when
trying to find and keep accommodation.  The project is a multi-agency
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partnership including a wide range of stakeholders all working together to
provide a joined up service. Partners include:

e Thanet District Council,

e Kent and Medway NHS and Social Care Partnership Trust

e Forward Trust.

e Thanet Winter Shelter,

e  Salvation Army,

e Pathways Ltd and Paramount Independent Property Services.

Thanet District Council also successfully utilised £561k of government
funding for rough sleeper support. Through this support, places where
vulnerable people, currently sleeping on the streets, can access
professional help and guidance have been created, including immediate
shelter and mental health support.

Regeneration

As part of the Government's ‘levelling-up” agenda, in September 2019
Margate was selected as one of the 100 places invited to develop proposals
for a new generation of multi-million-pound Town Deals. A Margate Town
Deal Board has been set up by the Council, to design and deliver an
economic growth strategy for the town, with a focus on urban regeneration,
improved transport, better broadband connectivity, skills and culture. If the
town’s proposal is successful and funding is secured it has the potential to
transform Margate and deliver tangible long-term benefits to the town

Ramsgate was also one of 50 towns invited to apply for Future High Streets
Funding.
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Local Plan

Following submission of the local plan in October 2018, examination in
public was held by the Planning Inspectorate between April and July 2019.
Subsequently, the Council consulted on the proposed modifications to
Thanet's Local Plan 2011-2031 from Wednesday 11 December to Monday
27 January 2020. Following receipt of the Inspectors Report in April 2020
the local plan was formally adopted by the Council in July 2020. The Plan
sets out where homes, jobs, community facilities, shops and infrastructure
will be delivered, as well as the type of places and environments we want to
create. It also identifies land to be protected from development such as
open space. The Plan is intended to cover the district until 2031.

Port and Harbour

In February 2020 the Council Published a high-level feasibility study into
looking at options for the future of Ramsgate port and harbour.
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8. Risk Management

There is an embedded process within the Council which examines operational and strategic risks. The corporate risk register is a vital
component of this process as it supports and informs the production of the corporate plan and is reviewed by the Governance and Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis.

9. Governance

The Annual Governance Statement, which accompanies these financial statements, sets out the governance framework and an assessment of
our effectiveness. The statement was prepared by the Director of Corporate Governance and concludes that the overall governance
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the Governance Framework.

The Internal Audit Annual Assurance report also concludes a reasonable assurance. This was based on the internal audit work completed and
reported to the Governance and Audit committee throughout the year. However it should be noted that Internal Audit have raised some
concerns with the Council's three statutory officers (the Chief Executive, the Deputy Chief Executive and the Corporate Director of
Governance), the external auditors Grant Thornton, the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Governance and Audit committee regarding some
matters that Internal Audit have been involved during the year, which were still to be resolved. The matters would be resolved and reported in
the next annual audit or governance report.
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10. Accounting Statements

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations and the Code of Practice and guidance issued by
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). The accounting policies adopted by the Council are outlined in this
document and have been fairly and consistently applied.

The statements are as detailed below:
The Core Statements

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices, rather
than the amount to be funded from taxation. Authorities raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different
from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in both the Expenditure and Funding Analysis and the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Authority, analysed into ‘usable reserves’ (those that can
be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation) and other ‘unusable reserves’. The ‘Increase/(Decrease) movements in the year’ line
shows the true economic cost of providing the Authority’s services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund balance and Housing
Revenue Account (HRA) for Council Tax setting and dwellings rent setting purposes.

Balance Sheet

This statement shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Authority. The net assets of the
Authority (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Authority. Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category
of reserves are usable reserves, i.e. those reserves that the Authority may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent
level of reserves and any statutory limitations on their use (for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the Authority is not able to use to provide services. This category of
reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become
available to provide services if the assets are sold; and reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement
line ‘Adjustments between accounting and funding basis under regulations’.
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Cash Flow Statement

This statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Authority during the reporting period. The statement shows how the
Authority generates and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount
of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Authority are funded by way of
taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Authority. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash
outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority’s future service delivery. Cash flows arising from
financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing) to the Authority.

Notes to the Core Financial Statements

These are set out after the above core statements. They provide further information and interpretation of the content of the individual
statements.

The Supplementary Financial Statements

Housing Revenue Account Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement shows the cost of providing, managing and maintaining housing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from rents and other income. Authorities charge rents to cover expenditure in accordance with
the housing legislative framework, which may be different from the accounting cost. The increase or decrease in the year, on the basis upon
which rents are raised, is shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue Account Statement.

Collection Fund Statement

The Collection Fund is an agent’s statement that reflects the statutory obligation for billing authorities to maintain a separate Collection Fund.
The statement shows the transactions of the billing authority in relation to the collection from taxpayers and distribution to local authorities and
the Government of council tax and non-domestic rates.
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Approval

In accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, the Governance and Audit Committee approved the 2019-20
Statement of Accounts on 3 March 2021.

/W
Signed : /\/\ \/ Date: 3 March 2021

ClIr Garner, Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee

For further information on the accounts please contact the Director of Financial Services & Deputy S151 Officer on 01843 577722 or write to :
Director of Financial Services & Deputy S151 Officer, Thanet District Council, PO Box 9, Cecil Street, Margate, Kent CT9 1XZ
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Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

Both the Council and the Section 151 Officer have certain responsibilities in respect of the Statement of Accounts.
The Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is required:

» to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for
the administration of those affairs; and

» to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets

> to approve the Statement of Accounts.

In this Council, the Responsible Officer is the Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer.
Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer Responsibilities

The Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council's Statement of Accounts in accordance with
proper practices as set out in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code”).

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer has:

selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently;

made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;

complied with the local authority Code;

kept proper accounting records which were up to date;

taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities;

gained appropriate assurance over the accuracy of the statement of accounts prior to approval.

VVVYVYVYVY

The Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the financial position of Thanet District Council as at 31 March 2020 and of its
income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

— o N—

Tim Willis CPFA
Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer

37



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

Date: 3 March 2021

Independent Auditors Report to the Members of Thanet District Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Thanet District Council (the ‘Authority’) for the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprise the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, the
Collection Fund Statement and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The notes to the
financial statements include the Notes to the Financial Statements and Notes to the Collection Fund Statement. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in
the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31 March 2020 and of its expenditure and income for the year then
ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK,
including the FRC'’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The impact of macro-economic uncertainties on our audit
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Our audit of the financial statements requires us to obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties, including those arising as a
consequence of the effects of macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the reasonableness
of estimates made by the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer and the related disclosures and the appropriateness of the going
concern basis of preparation of the financial statements. All of these depend on assessments of the future economic environment and the
Authority’s future operational arrangements.

Covid-19 and Brexit are amongst the most significant economic events currently faced by the UK, and at the date of this report their effects are
subject to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts unknown. We applied a standardised
firm-wide approach in response to these uncertainties when assessing the Authority’s future operational arrangements. However, no audit

should be expected to predict the unknowable factors or all possible future implications for an authority associated with these particular events.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

e the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

e the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Authority’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least
twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In our evaluation of the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer conclusions, and in accordance with the expectation set out within the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 that the Authority’s financial statements shall be
prepared on a going concern basis, we considered the risks associated with the Authority’s operating activities, including effects arising from
macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. We analysed how those risks might affect the Authority’s financial resources or
ability to continue operations over the period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. In
accordance with the above, we have nothing to report in these respects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in this auditor's report is not a
guarantee that the Authority will continue in operation.

Emphasis of Matter — effects of Covid-19 on the valuation of Council land and buildings, dwellings and investment properties and the
valuation of property investments within the pension fund assets
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We draw attention to Note 3 of the financial statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on the valuation of the Authority’s
non-current assets and investment properties as at 31 March 2020 and describes the effects of the valuation of the pension fund’s property
investments held within the pension fund assets as at 31 March 2020. The revaluations of non-current assets and investment properties and
the pooled property valuations have been provided by the external valuer on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’. This uncertainty is
caused by factors including the Covid-19 outbreak and means that less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be placed on the
valuation of these assets than would otherwise be the case. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual Governance Statement, other than the financial statements and,
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge of the Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report on by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General (the Code of Audit
Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the ‘delivering good governance in
Local Government Framework 2016 Edition’ published by CIPFA and SOLACE or is misleading or inconsistent with the information of which we
are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that
risks are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinion on other matter required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge of the Authority gained
through our work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the
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other information published together with the financial statements in the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report and the Annual
Governance Statement for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we are required to report to you fif:

e e issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion
of the audit; or

e we make a written recommendation to the Authority under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at
the conclusion of the audit; or

e we make an application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law under Section 28 of the Local Audit and
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or;

e we issue an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the
audit; or

e we make an application for judicial review under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

Responsibilities of the Authority, the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer and Those Charged with Governance for the
financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities set out on page 37, the Authority is required to make arrangements for the proper
administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this
authority, that officer is the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer. The Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer is responsible
for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer determines is hecessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless there is an intention by government that the services provided by the Authority will no longer be provided.
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The Governance and Audit Committee is Those Charged with Governance. Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Authority’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue and audit certificate in accordance with the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed our work to give our conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources.

We are satisfied that this matter does not have a material effect on the financial statements for this year ended 31 March 2020.

Signature:

Sarah Ironmonger, Key Audit Partner
for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP, Local Auditor

London

Date: 4th March 2021
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The movement in the re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability (£E10.777m) is as a result of a number of factors, including the return on
pension fund assets, changes in financial assumptions (pension and salary increases) and the extension of the duration of the past service
liability (see Note 38 for further detail on the basis of estimation and assumptions). The material item of expenditure (£19.5m) in 2019-20 relates to
the revaluation of Dreamland in accordance with the agreed sale value, required as part of the reclassification from a Heritage Asset to a Current
Asset Held for Sale (see Note 19).

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

Expenditure Income Net Gross expenditure, gross income and net expenditure on continuing Expenditure Income Net
£'000s £'000s £000s operations £°'000s £°'000s £'000s
503 (40) 463 Chief Executive 503 (18) 485
76,350 (72,599) 3,751 Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer 69,837 (65,422) 4,415
24,306 (12,140) 12,166 Director of Operations & Commercial Services 23,218 (13,279) 9,939
5,532 (2,430) 3,102 Director of Corporate Governance 6,446 (2,420) 4,026
- - - Director of Corporate Governance - Dreamland Revaluation 19,497 - 19,497
11,871 (8,155) 3,716 East Kent Shared Services 11,228 (7,500) 3,728
118,562 (95,364) 23,198 Cost of Services 130,729 (88,639) 42,090
750 Other Operating Expenditure Note 7 3,698
2,583 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure Note 8 2,004
(23,643) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure Note 9 (22,524)
2,888 (Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services 25,268
(17,168) (Surplus) or Deficit on revaluation of non-current assets Note 31a (8,137)
(10,077) Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability Note 38 700
(27,245) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (7,437)
(24,357) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 17,831

43



Thanet District Council - Statement of Accounts 2019-20

Movement in Reserves Statement

Detail of the movements and balances on the earmarked reserves are disclosed in Note 17.

For the Year Ended General Housing Capital Major Capital Total Unusable
31 March 2019 Fund Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Usable Reserves
Balance Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied Reserves
£°000s £°000s £°000s £°000s £000s £°000s £°000s
Note 16 & 17 Note 16 & 17 Note 30 Note 29 Note 29 Note 29 Note 31
Balance at 1 April 2018 (9,788) (12,997) (9,221) (10,019) (43) (42,068) (129,699)

Movement in Reserves during
2018-19:

Total Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure 1,901 987 - - - 2,888  (27,245)
Adjustments between accounting & (5,596) 176 (216) (2,746) - (8,382) 8,382
funding basis under regulations

(Note 16)

(zllr)lfsr«_af:e)l Decrease movement in (3,695) 1163 (216) (2,746) ) (5.494) (18,863)

Balance at 31 March 2019 carried

forward (13,483) (11,834) (9,437) (12,765) (43) (47,562) (148,562)
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Total
Authority
Reserves

£°000s

(171,767)

(24,357)

(24,357)

(196,124)



For the Year Ended
31 March 2020

Balance at 1 April 2019

Movement in reserves during
2019-20:

Total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure
Adjustments between accounting &

funding basis under regulations
(Note 16)

(Increase)/ Decrease (movement)
in 2019-20

Balance at 31 March 2020 carried
forward
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Movement in Reserves Statement cont’d

General Housing
Fund Revenue
Balance Account
£'000s £'000s
Note 16 & 17 Note 16 & 17

(13,483) (11,834)
22,713 2,555
(23,694) (441)
(981) 2,114
(14,464) (9,720)

Capital
Receipts
Reserve

£’000s
Note 30
(9,437)

893

893

(8,544)
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Major
Repairs
Reserve

£’000s
Note 29
(12,765)

(2,704)

(2,704)

(15,469)

Capital
Grants

Unapplied Reserves

£’000s
Note 29
(43)

(43)

Total
Usable

£’000s
Note 29
(47,562)

25,268

(25,946)

(678)

(48,240)

Total
Unusable
Reserves

£’000s
Note 31
(148,562)

(7,437)

25,946

18,509

(130,053)

Total
Authority
Reserves

£°000s

(196,124)

17,831

17,831

(178,293)
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Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

These financial statements replace the unaudited financial statements confirmed by the Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer on 31 August 2020.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£000s £'000s £000s
240,315 Property, Plant & Equipment Note 18 245,464
20,821 Heritage Assets Note 18/19 358
21,893 Investment Property Note 21 22,965
555 Long Term Debtors Note 24 303
283,584 Long Term Assets 269,090
17,929 Short Term Investments Note 22 17,995
186 Inventories 275
12,802 Short Term Debtors Note 24 14,437
24,742 Cash and Cash Equivalents Note 25 16,776
- Assets Held for Sale (< 1year) Note 26 7,276
55,659 Current Assets 56,759
(5,803) Short Term Borrowing Note 22 (912)
(13,785) Short Term Creditors Note 27 (15,448)
(3,406) Provisions Note 28 (8,251)
(6,316) Grant Receipts in Advance Note 15 (5,935)
(29,310) Current Liabilities (30,546)
(25,024) Long Term Borrowing Note 22 (24,394)
(88,422) Pension & Other Long Term Liabilities Note 38/39 (92,339)
(363) Grant Receipts in Advance Note 15 (277)
(113,809) Long Term Liabilities (117,010)
196,124 Net Assets 178,293
Represented By:
(47,562) Usable Reserves Note 29 (48,240)
(148,562) Unusable Reserves Note 31 (130,053)
(196,124) Total Reserves (178,293)

( (/\_) VAV, L\_v

Signed: Tim Willis CPFA, Deputy Chief Executive and Section 151 Officer

Date of audited accounts: 3 March 2021
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Cash Flow Statement

2018-19 2019-20
£'000s £'000s
2,888 Net (surplus) or deficit on the provision of services 25,268
(15,587) Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for Note 32a (34,344)

non-cash movements

2,567 Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the Note 32b 2,450
provision of services that are investing and financing activities

(10,132) Net cash flows from Operating Activities (6,626)
9,027 Investing Activities Note 33 11,019
518 Financing Activities Note 34 3,573
(587) Net (increase) or decrease in cash and cash equivalents Note 25 7,966
(24,155) Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period (24,742)
(24,742) Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period (16,776)
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Notes to the Core Financial Statements

1. Accounting Policies

General

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’'s transactions
for the 2019-20 financial year and its position at the year end of 31
March 2020. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts in accordance with the statutory framework
established in England by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015
which require the accounts to be prepared in accordance with
proper accounting practice. These primarily comprise the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019-20 (the Code) supported by the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is
principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of non-current assets and financial instruments.

Unless otherwise stated the figures in these accounts are rounded
to the nearest thousand pounds, and revenue and credit balances
are shown in brackets.

Going Concern

There is a high degree of uncertainty about future levels of funding
for local government, however the Council has robust financial
management procedures in place and maintains sufficient reserves
to mitigate adverse economic trends. Furthermore, as authorities
cannot be created or dissolved without statutory prescription, it
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would not therefore be appropriate for local authority financial
statements to be prepared on anything other than a going concern
basis.

The accounting policies that have been adopted are set out in the
following paragraphs.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Revenue and expenditure streams are accounted for in the year
they are due irrespective of whether the sums have been paid or
received as follows:

e Revenue from contracts with service recipients for either
goods or services is recognised when/as the goods or
services are transferred to the service recipient in
accordance with the performance obligations of the contract

e Supplies of goods are recorded as expenditure when they
are consumed, when there is a delay between the date the
supplies are received and when they are consumed, they
are carried as inventories on the Balance Sheet

e Expenditure in relation to services received (including the
services provided by employees) are recorded when the
services are received rather than when payments are made

e Revenue from non-exchange transactions such as council
tax and non-domestic rates are recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Council and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.
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Exceptions to this principle are public utility accounts which are
charged according to the date of the meter reading and some
recurring sundry debtor accounts and annual fees for which the due
dates do not coincide with normal quarter or year dates, subject to
materiality. This policy is applied consistently each year and does
not have a material effect on the year’s accounts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial
institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24
hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature no more than
three months from the date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of
change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Council's cash
management.

Material Items of Income and Expenditure

Where material items of income and expenditure are not disclosed
on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement a separate note will set out the nature and amount of the
relevant item.

Prior Period Adjustments

Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes
in accounting policies or standards will be reflected retrospectively
in the Statement of Accounts when required by proper accounting
practice, by restating both the opening balances and the
comparable figures for the prior year, together with a disclosure note

49

detailing the reasons for such restatement. Material errors in prior
period figures are also corrected retrospectively in the same way.

Employee Benefits
Pensions General

The Accounting Standards, IAS 19 and 26 regarding Employee
Benefits and Retirement Benefits, require recognition of pension
assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the operating costs of
providing retirement benefits together with changes in the value of
assets and liabilities to be reflected in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

In order that IAS 26 requirements do not impact upon council tax
levels, the movement on the net assets and liabilities (net of the
employer’s contributions and actuarial gains and losses) is
reversed out to the Pension Reserve through the Movement in
Reserves Statement.

Benefits Payable During Employment

The full costs of employees are charged to the accounts of the
period within which the employees worked.

The costs of any short term employee benefits untaken at the
balance sheet date such as untaken leave, flexitime and lieu time
due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end are accrued
subject to materiality. The value of the accrual is calculated at the
wage and salary rates applicable to the period in which the
employee takes the benefit (the following year), and is charged to
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. The adjustment is
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reversed out of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement so that there is no charge to the taxpayer.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision
by the Council to terminate an officer’s employment before the
normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the
appropriate service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement when the Council is demonstrably committed to the
termination of the employment or makes an offer to encourage
voluntary redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions,
statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund
or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves
Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions
Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for pension
enhancement termination benefits and replace them with debits for
the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such
amounts payable but unpaid at the year end.

Post Employment Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme administered by Kent
County Council (KCC) is a defined benefit scheme. Contributions to
the pension scheme are determined by the Fund’s actuary on a
triennial basis. The formal valuation of the Fund for the purpose of
setting employers’ actual contributions disclosed in these accounts
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was as at 31 March 2017 and this has been used to update the
service cost figures.

Liabilities of the pension scheme attributable to the Council are
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the
projected unit method. This requires an assessment of the future
payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned
to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates and projections of earnings for current
employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a
discount rate of 2.4% based on the indicative rate of return on high
quality corporate bonds.

The assets of the pension fund attributable to the Council are
included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

Quoted securities — current bid price
Unquoted securities — professional estimate
Unitised securities — current bid price
Property — market value

The changes in the net pensions liability is analysed into the
following components:

Service Costs comprising;

Current Service Cost — the increase in liabilities as a result of
years of service earned this year — allocated in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement to the revenue accounts of
services for which the employees worked.
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Past Service Cost — the increase in liabilities arising from current
year decisions whose effect relates to years of service earned in
earlier years — debited to the Cost of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of
Non-Distributed Costs.

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability — the expected
increase in the present value of liabilities during the year as they
move one year closer to being paid — debited to Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement.

Remeasurements;

Expected Return on Assets — the annual investment return on the
fund assets attributable to the Council, based on an average of the
expected long-term return — credited to Other Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the net pension liability
that arise because events have not coincided with assumptions
made at the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions — charged to the Pensions Reserve.

Contributions Paid to the Funds — cash paid as employer’s
contributions to the pension fund.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the
General Fund Balance to be charged with the amount payable by
the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the year,
not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting
standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means
that there are transfers to and from the Pensions Reserve to
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remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and
replace them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and
pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the
year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions
Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General
Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the
basis of cash flows rather than as the benefits are earned by
employees.

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary
awards of retirement benefits in the event of early retirements. Any
liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member
of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award
and accounted for using the same policies as are applied to the
Local Government Pension Scheme.

Events after the Reporting Period

Where an event occurs after the Balance Sheet date, whether
favourable or unfavourable, and also provides evidence of
conditions that existed at the Balance Sheet date, the amounts
recognised in the Statement of Accounts will be adjusted. Any
disclosures affected by the new information about the adjusting
event will also be updated in light of the new information.

Events that occur after the Balance Sheet date indicative of
conditions arising after the Balance Sheet date will not be adjusted
in the Accounting Statements, but will be disclosed in the Notes to
the Core Financial Statements if it would have had a material effect,
to include:

e the nature of the event, and
e an estimate of the financial effect or a statement that such
an estimate cannot be made reliably
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Events taking place after the date the accounts are authorised for
issue are not reflected in the Statement of Accounts.

Financial Instruments — Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the
Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial
instrument and are initially measured at fair value and carried at
their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are based
on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate
of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the life
of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally
recognised. For the Council's borrowings this means that the
amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal
repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest charged to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount
payable for the year in accordance with the loan agreements.

Financial Instruments — Financial Assets

Financial assets are classified based on a classification and
measurement approach that reflects the business model for holding
the financial assets and their cash flow characteristics. The
Council's business model is to hold investments to collect
contractual cash flow, these assets are therefore classified and
measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the
Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the contractual
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provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised cost.
Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount
of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the
outstanding principal receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
is the amount receivable for the year in the loan agreement. A small
element of the loans are classified as soft loans (made at less than
market rate) so there is a requirement to record any loss in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to represent
interest forgone over the life of the loan if material.

Expected Credit Loss

Trade debtors - classified as financial assets, any loss allowance
is calculated by considering the age of the debt, historic payment
trends and any lifetime expected credit loss. Where these assets
are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past
event that payments due under the contract will not be made, the
asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement under the heading ‘Impairment
of Financial Instruments’. Due to the unprecedented circumstances
arising from the Covid-19 pandemic, an assessment of future
losses based on historic trends may not fully capture the full scale
of expected credit losses that the Council is exposed to. Therefore
for 2019-20 the Council has also applied a general provision, over
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and above its usual assessment, to allow for a prudent estimate for
the potential increase in default due to the economic conditions
resulting from the Covid-19 pandemic.

No loss allowance is set aside for local authority and central
government debts as statutory provisions under the Local
Government Act 2003 prevent default.

Loans - the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and present value of the revised future cash
flows discounted at the assets original effective interest rate. Any
gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are
credited or debited to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its property assets and some of its
financial instruments at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
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economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a
non-financial asset, the Council takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Council uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities
for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy as
follows:

e Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Council can access at
the measurement date

e Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly

e Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Government and Non-Government Grants and
Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government
grants and third party contributions and donations are recognised as
due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance that:

e the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the
payments, and
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e the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement until conditions
attached to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions

are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or
service potential embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or
contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as
specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions
have not been satisfied are carried in the Balance Sheet as
creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is
credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and
contributions) or Taxation and Non-specific Grant Income and
Expenditure (non-ring fenced revenue grants and all capital grants)
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out of the General
Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted
to the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve. Where it has been
applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in
the Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital
Adjustment Account once they have been applied to fund capital
expenditure.

Revenue grants are matched in service revenue accounts with the
service expenditure to which they relate. Grants to cover general
expenditure (e.g. Revenue Support Grant) are credited to the foot of
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the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement under
Taxation and Non—Specific Grant Income.

Heritage Assets

A heritage asset is a tangible or intangible asset that is intended to
be preserved in trust for future generations because of its historical,
artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or environmental
gualities and is held and maintained principally for its contribution to
knowledge and culture.

The Council has identified the following asset groups as classified
as Heritage Assets:

Public statues

Artefacts and or collections within museums
Art collections

Civic regalia

Historic amusement park and rides

Heritage assets (other than operational heritage assets) shall
normally be measured at cost in accordance with FRS102 since it
is deemed to be more appropriate and relevant than applying any
valuation model, therefore there is no requirement for verification by
an external valuer or any prescribed periods between valuations.

Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost or if bequeathed or
donated at nil cost, at valuation.

Heritage assets are reviewed for evidence of impairment, including
doubts as to authenticity. Any impairment is accounted for in
accordance with the Council's policy within the Property Plant and
Equipment accounting policy. The proceeds of any disposals
likewise follow the Council's general accounting policy.
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Intangible Assets

In line with IAS 38 (Intangible Assets), expenditure on intangible
fixed assets is capitalised at cost. An intangible fixed asset is one
that has no physical substance but is identifiable and the Council
has control, (either through custody or legal protection) over the
future economic benefits derivable from it.

Purchased intangible assets (e.g. software licences) should be
capitalised as assets. Internally developed intangible assets should
only be capitalised where criteria set out in section 4.5.2.7 of the
Code are met. The Council must satisfy itself that these criteria can
be met and that internal systems are able to distinguish between
Research and Development phases of a project.

Council policy is to write down intangible assets to the relevant
service revenue account in the year that they occur.

Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Code’s definition of an interest in another entity includes ‘the
means by which an entity has control or joint control of, or
significant influence over, another entity’. In accordance with IFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 11 Joint
Arrangements, assessment of any involvement/interest for the
purposes of group accounts will consider the above when
determining whether or not a group relationship exists. This is
considered to apply where the Council has all of the following:

e sole control of another entity and power over it;

e exposure to risks or rights to variable returns;

e and the ability to use its power over the other entity to
influence those returns.
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Subject to the assessment set out above if the Council’s interest is
deemed to be a group relationship the Council may still only prepare
single entity accounts if the group interest is not material.

Inventories, Rechargeable Works and Long Term
Contracts

Inventories relate to printing, stationery and marketing merchandise
held at Visitor Information Centres and Museums and stores held at
the Parks and Waste Direct Labour Organisations.

The Code and IAS 2 (Inventories), require stocks to be shown at
the lower of actual cost or net realisable value. The stock at the
printing unit is measured at an average cost of stock held as it is
considered that the financial effect of the different treatment is not
material.

Any work in progress is subject to an interim valuation at year end.
Rechargeable Works are included at cost. Long Term contracts are
defined as “contracts entered into for the design, manufacture or
construction of a single substantial asset or the provision of a
service (or of a combination of assets or services which together
constitute a single project) where the time taken substantially to
complete the contract is such that the contract activity falls into
different accounting periods.” The Council makes a disclosure in the
notes to the Core Financial Statements in respect of any capital
contracts meeting this definition. Long term contracts are accounted
for by charging the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
with the consideration allocated to the performance obligations of
the contract that have been satisfied, based on the goods or
services that have been transferred to the service recipient during
the financial year.
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Joint Operations

Joint Operations are activities undertaken by the Council in
conjunction with other bodies where there is joint control and the
parties have rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities of
the arrangement. Joint control exists where unanimous consent is
required from the parties sharing control for decisions about
relevant activities. The Council recognises on its Balance Sheet its
own assets and the liabilities that it incurs, and debits and credits
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement with the
expenditure it incurs and the share of the income it may earn from
the activity of the operation.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the lessor to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The
accounting treatment for leases depends on whether the Council is
a lessee; is paying a third party rental payments for the right to use
an asset, or a lessor where it is granting the right to use an asset to
an external third party. The accounting treatment for each is given
below:

Where the Council is a Lessee

Finance Leases: Where the Council enters into material finance
leases, the asset is recognised in the Council's Balance Sheet,
together with any associated liability to fund the asset. The cost of
the fixed asset is then charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement over the life of the asset in accordance with
the Council’s depreciation policy.
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Rentals payable under finance leases are apportioned between a
finance charge and a reduction in the liability. The apportionment
basis used ensures that the finance charge is allocated over the
term of the lease.

Operating Leases: Leases that do not meet the definition of finance
leases are accounted for as operating leases. Rentals payable are
charged to the relevant service revenue account on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease, generally meaning that rentals are
charged when they become payable.

Where the Council is a Lessor

Finance Leases: The asset is removed from the Balance Sheet as
the risks and rewards are with the lessee with the amounts due
from finance leases recorded in the Balance Sheet as a debtor.
Rentals received are apportioned between reducing the debtor and
finance interest earnings. The apportionment basis used ensures
that earnings are normally allocated to the lease term to give a
constant periodic rate of return to the Council.

Operating Leases: Rentals receivable are charged to the relevant
service revenue account over the term of the lease, generally
meaning that rentals are charged when they become payable.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to
service segments in accordance with the Council’'s arrangements
for accountability and financial performance.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment
Property

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during
more than one financial year are classified as either Property, Plant
and Equipment or Investment Properties.

Recognition: Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or
enhancement of non-current assets has been capitalised on an
accruals basis at cost with subsequent measurement as explained
below. Expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised, provided
that the asset yields benefit to the Council and the services it
provides, for a period of more than one financial year. Subsequent
expenditure on non-current assets is capitalised in accordance with
IAS 16. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs and
maintenance of non-current assets, which is charged directly to
service revenue accounts. The Council has set a de minimis level
in respect of the recognition of capital expenditure of £10k.

Non-current assets are classified into groupings required by the
Code, comprising:
a) Property, Plant and Equipment, which can be further
analysed as
e Land and Operational Buildings
Council Dwellings
Infrastructure Assets
Vehicles Plant and Equipment
Community Assets
Assets under Construction
b) Heritage Assets
c) Investment Properties
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d) Intangible Assets (see separate accounting policy)

Measurement: Non-current assets have been valued on the basis
recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements of
Asset Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). They have been
classified in accordance with the IFRS Code and have been valued
on the following bases:

a) Land and Operational Buildings — the lower of net current
replacement cost or net realisable value (as certified by the
Estates Surveyaor)

b) Council Dwellings — existing use value for social housing,
including regional adjustment factors as amended from time
to time

c) Heritage Assets — (see separate accounting policy)

d) Infrastructure Assets — historical cost net of depreciation

e) Vehicles, Plant and Equipment — the lower of net current
replacement cost or net realisable value

f) Community Assets — historical cost

0)] Investment Properties — normally open market value

Net current replacement cost is assessed as:
e Non-specialised operational properties — existing use value
e Specialised operational properties —  depreciated
replacement cost
e Investment properties and surplus assets — market value

Depreciated replacement cost is only used where there is no active
market for the asset being valued: that is where there is no useful or
relevant evidence of recent sales transactions due to the
specialised nature of the asset.

Revaluation: Revaluations of non-current assets are undertaken
on an annual basis for Council Dwellings using the Beacon
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principle, investment properties with a value over £100k, and
General Fund Operational Land and Buildings with a value over
£800k. Revaluations of other non-current assets are undertaken on
a 5-year rolling programme, revaluing approximately one fifth of
these Council’'s assets annually. Identified material changes to
asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, as they occur.
The Asset Valuations in these accounts have been prepared using
the services of external valuers. The valuations were produced in
accordance with guidelines issued by CIPFA, and in accordance
with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors current guidance
notes for Asset Valuation. The date of valuation for the General
Fund is 31 December 2019.

The basis for Council Dwellings valuations is Existing Use Value for
Social Housing (EUV-SH). Under this method the vacant
possession value of the dwellings is reduced to 33% of the market
value, to reflect the occupation by a secure tenant. A full valuation of
the Beacon properties is undertaken every five years but an annual
adjustment is made to reflect market changes during the year. The
date of valuation for the Housing Revenue Account is 31 March
2020.

Surpluses from any revaluation of assets are credited to the
Revaluation Reserve and are used to offset any subsequent
revaluation loss with the exception of investment properties that are
charged directly to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement and reversed out to the Capital Adjustment Account to
ensure that no cost falls to the taxpayer. The Revaluation Reserve
contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Gains arising before that date
have been consolidated into the Capital Adjustment Account.

Investment Property: Investment properties are those that are
used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. The
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definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the
delivery of services or production of goods or is held for sale.
Investment properties are measured initially at cost and
subsequently at fair value, based on the amount at which the asset
could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arms length.
Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according
to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on
revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on
disposal. Rentals received in relation to investment properties are
credited to the Financing and Investment Income line and result in a
gain for the General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and
disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory
arrangements to have an impact on the General Fund Balance. The
gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the
Capital Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than
£10k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Components: The Code requires local authorities to identify
elements of major assets that have either a capital cost that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset and/or has a
different useful life or depreciation method. The Council accounts for
components for assets with a gross book value in excess of £1m
and where any individual component has a value in excess of
£100k. The component proposals for the HRA dwelling stock differ
from that above. The Council componentises its Council dwelling
stock on a dwelling basis and proportions the overall valuation into
four key components. Those components that are depreciable are
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the Council dwelling,
resulting in an overall stock depreciation figure.

Impairment: Assets are assessed at each year end as to whether
there is any indication that an impairment charge may be required.
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Where indications exist that may give rise to impairment of an asset
and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is
less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is
recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, the accounting entries are:

e where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in
the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset
is written down against that balance (up to the amount of the
accumulated gains)

e where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an
insufficient balance, the carrying amount of the asset is
written down against the relevant service line(s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is
credited to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement up to the amount of the original
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the
loss had not been recognised.

The HRA dwelling stock is revalued annually using beacon property
values. Any change in valuation is assessed to determine any
annual impairment charges.

Disposals: Income from the disposal of non-current assets is
accounted for on an accruals basis. When an asset is disposed of
or decommissioned, the value of the asset in the Balance Sheet,
any receipt from disposal and any costs associated with the
disposal are accounted for in the Comprehensive Income and

Expenditure Statement so comprising any gains or losses on
disposal. Any revaluation gains in the Revaluation Reserve are
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transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in excess
of £10k are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion of receipts
relating to Right to Buy disposals are payable to Government, net of
allowable deductions. Since the changes to the pooling of capital
receipts (1st April 2012) and the introduction of the Government’s
1-4-1 replacement programme, which the Council adopted, a higher
proportion of receipts are retained. These housing receipts are
retained for the 1-4-1 replacement of Council Dwellings and for
investment in certain regeneration projects or affordable housing.
The balance of receipts is required to be credited to the Usable
Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital
investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to
borrow (the Capital Financing Requirement). Receipts are
appropriated to the reserve through the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council
tax, as the cost of non-current assets is fully provided for under
separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are
appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account through the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

Depreciation: With the exception of Investment Properties and
Land (which are not subject to depreciation), assets are depreciated
on a straight line basis over their useful economic life as follows:

Council Dwellings Up to 60 years

Infrastructure Up to 40 years

Heritage Assets  Varies on asset type, see separate
accounting policy

Specifically determined by Estates Officer
Up to 12 years

Other Buildings
Vehicles

Plant
Surplus Assets

Up to 10 years
Up to 40 years
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Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the
difference between current value depreciation charged on assets
and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based on
their historical cost being transferred each year from the
Revaluation Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. On
revaluation, accumulated depreciation is written out for both current
value and historical cost with subsequent depreciation calculated on
a straight line basis over the remaining useful life of the asset.

Newly acquired assets are depreciated in the year of acquisition
unless the purchase is near to the financial year end and the
change in depreciation charge is considered material in which case
depreciation will apply to the following year. Assets in the course of
construction are depreciated when they are brought into use.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment has major
components whose cost is significant in relation to the total cost of
the item, the components are depreciated separately (see
Component section above). The Council componentises its housing
stock and then depreciates the depreciable components over the
useful economic life of each Council dwelling.

Provisions

Provisions represent sums set aside for liabilities or losses which
are likely or certain to be incurred where an event has taken place
that gives the Council a legal obligation that probably requires
settlement and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
that obligation. Provisions are charged directly to the appropriate
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

Statement when the obligation arises and when the expenditure is
actually incurred it is charged directly to the provision.
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New arrangements for the retention of business rates came into
effect on 1 April 2013 along with the requirement for an additional
provision to be set aside for potential changes to rateable values as
a result of appeals. The Council's share of this provision is
disclosed in Note 28 and is calculated using Valuation Office (VO)
data on successful and outstanding appeals. As there is potential
for such appeals to be backdated to previous as well as current VO
rating lists, the amount set aside includes an element for
backdating. An estimate is also made for appeals that may yet be
lodged under the new Check, Challenge and Appeal process, based
on a percentage of the likelihood of appeal for those properties that
are not currently in receipt of mandatory or discretionary relief.

HRA Leasehold Service Charge accounts are raised after the
accounts have closed as they are based on actual cost in order to
comply with Leasehold conditions. A provision is made on the
Leasehold Maintenance Holding Account for the estimated cost of
services, day to day repairs, recurring maintenance and major
works incurred during the financial year.

Reserves

Amounts set aside for purposes falling outside of the definition of
provisions are considered as reserves. The Council sets aside
specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out
of the General Fund Balance. When expenditure to be financed from
a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service line
within the Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement and an equal amount is appropriated back to
the General Fund from the relevant reserve so that there is no
impact on the council taxpayer.
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Details of the Council's reserves can be found within the notes to
the Core Financial Statements. Certain reserves are kept to
manage the accounting processes for tangible non-current assets
and retirement benefits and they do not represent usable resources
for the Council.

The Statement of Accounts also clearly separates the usable and
unusable reserves in the Financing section of the Balance Sheet.

Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Contingent Liabilities are defined as possible obligations that arise
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the Council's control. Contingent liabilities can also arise where a
provision would have been made but it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required or the amount cannot be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the
Balance Sheet but are disclosed in a note to the accounts.

A Contingent Asset arises where an event has taken place that
gives the Council a possible asset whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent Assets are
not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of
economic benefits or service potential.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital Under
Statute (REFCUS)

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under
statutory provisions but that does not result in the creation of a
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non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the relevant
service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
in the year. Council policy is to write down this expenditure in the
year that it occurs. The full cost is charged to the relevant service in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but then
reversed out through the Movement in Reserves Statement to
ensure that there is no impact on the council taxpayer.

Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than
through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for
Sale and has the following specific criteria attached to it:

Management is committed to sell

The asset is available for immediate sale
A buyer is being actively sought

The sale is likely (within 12 months)

The asset is for sale at a fair price

Itis unlikely that the sale process will stop

If the asset meets these criteria it should be newly classified as a
current asset and no longer depreciated. The asset is revalued
immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of
this amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment of Non-Contractual Debts

Provisions are made for the impairment of non-contractual
(non-exchange) statutory Collection Fund debts such as Council
Tax and Business Rates by evaluating the risk of impairment on a
collective basis, based on their past-due status, using recovery
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stages and age analysis. The requirement is to set aside a
provision where there is evidence of non-recoverable losses, so the
impact of the Coronavirus Pandemic and imposed lockdown in late
March 2020 has not materially increased the provision, however the
Local Taxation Funding earmarked reserve is maintained to set
aside for the uncertain volatility of council tax and business rate
revenue.

Debts relating to garage rents are subject to a flat rate percentage
based on historical trends. All other HRA related debts over £2.5k
are analysed and a provision made depending on individual
circumstances, with the exception of leaseholder accounts as the
Housing Act states that tenants should not subsidise Leaseholders,
therefore no bad debt provision is made within the HRA. Housing
benefit overpayment debt provision is subject to a range of specific
percentages which is dependent on whether the debt is to be
collected from on-going benefit.

Collection Fund

Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund
for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of
Council Tax and Business Rates. Statute determines the amount
required to be transferred from the Collection Fund to the General
Fund (an authority’s precept for the year (plus)/minus its share of
the (surplus)/deficit on the Collection Fund for the previous year
estimated on 15 January for Council Tax and 31 January for

Business Rates). The Council Tax and Business Rate income
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
is the accrued income for the year. The difference between this
amount and the amount required by regulation is taken to the
Collection Fund Adjustment Account, and is included as a
reconciling item in the Movement in Reserves Statement to negate
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the effect on the taxpayer. Council Tax and Business Rates are
collected on an agency basis, so the Balance Sheet reflects the
debtor/creditor position between the Council, Central Government
and major preceptors, since the cash paid to preceptors in the year
is not the share of actual cash collected from council tax and
business rate payers.

Business Rate Pool

Income or expenditure generated as a result of membership of the
Kent Business Rate Pool (from 1 April 2015) is accounted for in the
proportions set out in the pool agreement. The Council’'s share of
any income or expenditure is credited or debited respectively to
Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the relevant
financial year. Levy or safety net payments due to or from the lead
authority at the end of the accounting year are reflected as creditors
or debtors in the Balance Sheet and any increase or decrease in the
Growth Fund share (to be utlised to promote growth within the
district pool based area) is set aside in the Equalisation Reserve
within the Council’'s Balance Sheet for future use. During 2018-19
the Kent Pool took part in the 100% Business Rates Retention Pilot
Scheme (for one year only) whereby the pool was able to retain the
central government share of business rate income for the year to be
distributed within the Kent area.

Value Added Tax

In accounting for VAT, the Council complies with FRS102 (The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK). VAT payable is
excluded from the main accounting statements unless it is not
recoverable under normal tax rules. VAT receivable is excluded as
it is due to Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC).
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la. Accounting Standards Issued, not yet Adopted

The accounting standards that have been issued but not yet adopted under the 2020-21 Code, that may require disclosure in the 2019-20
accounts if applied retrospectively are as follows:

e Amendments to IAS28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
e Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle
e Amendments to IAS 19 Employee Benefits: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement.

It is not anticipated that any of the new standards will have a material impact on the accounts. The planned adoption of IFRS 16 Leases under
the 2020-21 Code has now been deferred to 2022-23, with an implementation date of April 2022.

2. Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in Note 1, the Authority This assessment has identified an estimated decrease of £0.066m
has had to make certain judgements about complex transactions or (0.10%) against the General Fund operational asset base of
those involving uncertainty about future events. £66.780m, and an estimated increase of £0.466m (2.03%) against

the investment property asset base of £22.965m. This is
The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are: considered to be immaterial and no adjustment has been made to

the balance sheet. The current revaluation policy (including
Non-Current Assets frequency, methodology and classifications) states that any material

changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period as
they occur. All valuations are performed in accordance with RICS
and CIPFA guidance.

The Council annually revalues its Investment Properties with a
value of over £100k, and its General Fund Operational Land and
Buildings with a value of over £800Kk. It is not considered feasible or
financially viable to value all assets annually and the Council
revalues all its other Investment Properties and General Fund
Operational Land and Buildings on a five yearly rolling cycle. The
Council has also implemented a desktop review process to assess
whether or not the valuation held on the balance sheet is materially
different from that if an actual year-end valuation had taken place.

Details of uncertainties, and the effects if actual results differ from
assumptions, concerning non-current asset revaluations are given
in note 3.

Dreamland

Dreamland is considered to be the oldest surviving pleasure park in
Great Britain (dating back to the British railway boom of the early
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1860's) and has been restored specifically as a vintage site. The
amusement park is regarded as a heritage asset in these accounts
as it is essential to provide the heritage dreamland
activities/services from the site, which is held and maintained
principally for its contribution to knowledge and culture. The specific
site is an integral part of the heritage experience (being the original
location of the park) as are certain features of the site such as the
iconic Grade Il Listed Scenic Railway and cinema complex. Given
that the amusement park is a specialist asset providing a unique
heritage experience, it is measured at historical cost in the 2018-19
balance sheet as it is not practicable to obtain a valuation at a cost.

East Kent Housing

The Council, together with Canterbury City Council, Dover District
Council and Folkestone and Hythe District Council (formerly
Shepway) jointly own East Kent Housing Ltd (EKH), an Arms
Length Management Organisation (ALMO), whose principal activity
is to manage each of the four Councils’ housing stock. The Chief
Executives of the four Councils took over joint control of the ALMO
from the original Board with effect from 12 December 2019 as a
result of Health & Safety compliance failures, with a view to
returning the service back in house during 2020-21. The Council's
25% interest in EKH has been classified as a joint venture with
three other local authorities. With due regard to both the quantitative
and qualitative aspects of materiality the Council has concluded that
the preparation of group accounts is not required.

The Council has entered into an agreement with EKH that if the
company is not able to make payments to the Kent Local
Government Pension Fund in respect of the pensionable service of
employees transferred from the Council, then the Council will meet
such payments. EKH’s pension liability has increased from £9.5m
to £9.9m as at 31 March 2020. The company remains able to meet
its current pension obligations and will not be making calls on the
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four owner Councils towards its pension liability as at that date. The
Council's share of this liability is £2.5m. In any event, the deficit
calculated for the purposes of preparing EKH’s year end accounts
is not one and the same as the actual liability if the four Councils
were required to take on EKH'’s pension liabilities.

The services that EKH provides to the four Councils are due to be
transferred back to those bodies on 1 October 2020 and the actual
pension liability will be assessed as part of that transfer.

Your Leisure

Hartsdown Leisure Centre — It was agreed at Cabinet on August
2009 that Thanet Leisure Force (now Your Leisure Kent Limited),
the company engaged to run the Council’s leisure facilities would
borrow money (£1.62m) through a range of loans varying from 5 to
15 years, facilitated by Alliance Leisure, to invest in the authority’s
asset Hartsdown Leisure Centre. To facilitate the loan arrangement,
Alliance Leisure acting on behalf of the lender requires the Council
to act as guarantor should Your Leisure Kent Ltd default on the loan
payments or cease trading and the outstanding loan obligation
transfers to the Council. As at 31 March 2020 payments totalling
£1.861m including interest have been made by Your Leisure Kent
Ltd. The anticipated outstanding balance now sits at £0.857m.

Covid-19 continues to have a significant impact on all leisure
operators and the Council is working with Your Leisure Ltd to avoid
any default on the loan obligations. As a result the probability of
default is judged to be unlikely and therefore a provision for any
related future obligations arising due to a potential default has not
been recognised in the accounts.

Ramsgate Leisure Centre — In February 2012 Thanet Leisure
Force (Your Leisure Kent Ltd) entered into an agreement with
Alliance Leisure to secure funding for the provision of a new
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swimming pool in Ramsgate, together with a spa facility and café.
The capital costs of the development were £3.8m. The Council is
acting as guarantor however, the agreement includes an additional
clause which states that were Alliance Leisure to terminate the
agreement, the Council would be given a period of 30 days to agree
a new party to take over all Your Leisure’s rights and obligations
under the agreement. Therefore, in the event of default by Your
Leisure Kent Ltd, the Council would either need to find another party
to work with, or take over the running of this facility itself. As at 31
March 2020 payments totalling £2.955m including interest have
been made by Your Leisure Kent Ltd and the anticipated
outstanding balance now sits at £6.021m. In the event that Your
Leisure were to cease trading, both the liabilities and the associated
assets would transfer back to the Council.

Covid-19 continues to have a significant impact on all leisure
operators and the Council is working with Your Leisure Ltd to avoid
any default on the loan obligations. As a result the probability of
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default is judged to be unlikely and therefore a provision for any
related future obligations arising due to a potential default has not
been recognised in the accounts.

Civica

As a result of the transfer of services from East Kent Services to
CIVICA UK Ltd in February 2018, CIVICA has admitted body status
within the Local Government Pension Scheme, under the terms of
the transfer and the associated agreement the Council has become
the Pension Guarantor. This guarantee means that the existing
previous pension arrangements would revert in the instance of
failure on the part of the admitted body. Inevitably this would result
in the recharge of pension costs and liabilities across all partners
in-line with the original contract. The probability of such a failure is
judged to be unlikely, therefore a provision for any related future
obligations arising has not been recognised in the accounts.
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3. Assumptions made about the Future and other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based on assumptions made by the Authority about the future or that are
otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates.

The items in the Authority’s Balance Sheet at 31 March 2020 for which there is a significant risk of material adjustment in the forthcoming
financial year are as follows:

Item Uncertainties Effect if Actual Result Differs from Assumptions
Pensions Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a The effects on the net pensions liability of changes in
Liability number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate individual assumptions can be measured. For instance, a

used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, 0.1% increase in the discount rate assumption would result in
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected a decrease in the pension liabilty of £3.847m and an
returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries increase of one year to the mortality rate would result in an
is engaged to provide the Authority with expert advice about increased pension liability of £9.817m. However, the
the assumptions to be applied. assumptions interact in complex ways.

The current response to Covid-19 means pooled property
valuations are reported on the basis of ‘material valuation
uncertainty’ as set out in Valuation Practice Guidance
Application 10 (VPGA10) of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Red Book Global. Consequently, less
certainty and a higher degree of caution should be attached
to the valuations than would otherwise be the case. The
value of assets impacted, and a sensitivity analysis based on
the principal actuarial assumptions can be seen on Note 38.

Investment The Council has in excess of 200 investment properties. An Investment assets totaling £3.472m have not been revalued
Property Asset annual valuation of all these assets is not practical, therefore in 2019-20. In general, the asset valuations for investment
Values only those assets with a value over £100k are valued annually properties have gone up by 3.6% in 2019-20. If the same

with the remainder valued on a rolling 5 year basis. increase were to be applied to those investment properties

not revalued, then this would require an adjustment of
£0.125m to the asset valuation.
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Revaluations of non-current assets and investment properties
as part of the annual process have been provided by the
external valuer on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’
in accordance with Valuation Technical and Performance
Standard 3 (VPS 3) and Valuation Practice Guidance
Application 10 (VPGA10) of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors (RICS) Red Book Global. This uncertainty is caused
by factors including the Covid-19 outbreak, which was declared
a global pandemic on 11 March 2020, and Brexit, and means
that less certainty and a higher degree of caution should be
placed on the valuation of these assets than would otherwise
be the case.

4. Events After The Reporting Period

The future economic impact of a 1% change in valuation,
crystallising after 31 March 2020 balance sheet date would
alter the General Fund operational asset base of £66.780m
by £0.668m, and the investment property asset base of
£22.965m by £0.230m.The Material Valuation Uncertainty
Forum has been set up by RICS to consider the unique
events relating to the pandemic and its impact on valuations,
with a focus on financial reporting and measures for the
accurate consistent reporting of material uncertainty. This
forum has not given a date as to when it might be possible to
review valuations, but in the valuer’s opinion the earliest a
meaningful review could be conducted would be December
2020. Valuations will be kept under review in line with the
guidance provided by the RICS Forum.

The unaudited Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer on 31 August 2020. Where
events taking place before this date provided information about conditions existing at 31 March 2020, figures and disclosures in the accounts
require adjustment if they are material. Cabinet agreed to the disposal of the Dreamland Amusement Park on 1 August 2019 and the sale was
subsequently agreed on 18 December 2020.
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Notes Supporting the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement

5. Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The objective of the Expenditure and Funding Analysis is to demonstrate to council tax and rent payers how the funding available to the authority (i.e.
government grants, rents, council tax and business rates) for the year has been used in providing services in comparison with those resources consumed or
earned by the authority in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices. This analysis also shows how this expenditure is allocated for decision
making purposes between the Council’s directorates (services/departments). Income and expenditure is presented more fully in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The material item of expenditure under the Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer and the Director of Corporate Governance
directorates relates to the reclassification and revaluation of Dreamland (see Note 19).

31 March 2019

Chief Executive
Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer

- Dreamland revaluation accounting adjustment

Director of Operations & Commercial Services
Director of Corporate Governance
- Dreamland revaluation
East Kent Shared Services
Cost of Services
Other Income and Expenditure
(Surplus) or Deficit on Provision of Services

Opening GF & HRA balance as at 31 March

Surplus on General Fund & HRA balance in year

Expenditure Adjustment Net
Chargeable to between Funding Expenditure
the GF & HRA and Accounting in the CIES

Balances Basis
£'000s £'000s £'000s
463 - 463
(3,039) 6,790 3,751
12,166 - 12,166
3,102 - 3,102
3,716 - 3,716
16,408 6,790 23,198
(18,940) (1,370) (20,310)
(2,532) 5,420 2,888
(22,785)
(2,532)
(25,317)

Closing GF & HRA balance as at 31% March
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Expenditure
Chargeable to

31 March 2020

Adjustment
between Funding

Net

Expenditure

the GF & HRA and Accounting in the CIES
Balances Basis
£000s £000s £000s
485 - 485
791 3,624 4,415
(19,497) 19,497 :
9,939 - 9,939
4,026 - 4,026
19,497 = 19,497
3,728 - 3,728
18,969 23,121 42,090
(17,836) 1,014 (16,822)
1,133 24,135 25,268
(25,317)
1,133
(24,184)
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5a. Note to the Expenditure and Funding Analysis

This note provides further analysis of the adjustments to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account between funding and accounting
basis to arrive at the net expenditure in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The material item in the adjustments for capital
purposes relates to the reclassification and revaluation of Dreamland (see Note 19).

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Capital Net Other Total Adjustments from General Fund & HRA to Capital Net Other Total
Purposes Change Statutory arrive at the Comprehensive Income & Purposes Change  Statutory
for Differences Expenditure Statement amounts for Differences
Pensions Pensions
£°000s £°000s £000s £°000s £°000s £°000s £°000s £°000s
4,655 2,157 (22) 6,790 Deputy Chief Executive & Section 151 Officer 328 3,461 (165) 3,624
- - - - - Dreamland revaluation adjustment 19,497 - - 19,497
4,655 2,157 (22) 6,790 Cost of Services 19,825 3,461 (165) 23,121
(986) - - (986) Other Operating Expenditure 1,851 - - 1,851
142 - - 142 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure  (1,107) - - (1,107)
- (526) (526) Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and - - 270 270
- Expenditure
Other Income & Expenditure from the
(844) i (526)  (1,370) Expenditure & Funding Analysis e i 210 S0I%
Difference between General Fund & HRA
3811 2,157 (548) 5,420 (Surplus)/Deficit and Comprehensive Income & 20,569 3.461 105 24.135

Expenditure Statement (Surplus)/Deficit on the
Provision of Services
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Restated
2018-19

£'000s
21,558
50,289
32,242
362
142
199

42

59
2,409
14,473

1,152
1,736

124,663

(28,634)
(13,672)
(21,652)
(6,541)
(48,508)
(1,185)

(1,262)
(321)

(121,775)

2,888

The material increase in revaluation expenditure relates to Dreamland (see Note 19).
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6. Expenditure and Income Analysed by Nature

Expenditure

Employee benefits expenses

Housing benefit expenditure

Other service expenses

Expenditure on investment properties
Investment property fair value loss

Payments to the housing capital receipts pool
Loss on trading undertakings

Impairment of financial instruments

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability
Depreciation, amortisation, impairment and revaluation
Loss on disposal of non-current assets
Interest payments

Precepts and levies

Income

Fees and charges and other service income
Housing Revenue Account income

Council Tax and Non-Domestic Rates Income
Government grants and contributions
Housing benefit subsidy

Gains on disposal of non-current assets
Investment property fair value gain

Income from investment properties

Interest and investment income

(Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services
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2019-20
£'000s
23,892
41,914
33,996

356

232
218
807
2,101
30,927
1,619
1,034
1,847

138,943

(26,491)
(13,823)
(18,856)
(10,039)
(41,954)

(1,106)
(1,045)
(361)

(113,675)

25,268
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The 2018-19 figures have been restated to provide more clarity between expenditure and income items. The reduction to Housing benefit
expenditure and subsidy is as a result of the move to Universal Credit resulting in less claimants.

6a. Segmental Analysis

The management fee income from the shared service partners (East Kent Shared Services) is the only material revenue from contracts and is

disclosed in the table below:
Revenue from

Contracts Depreciation
2018-19 with Service Interest Interest and
Recipients Revenue Expense Amortisation
Directorate £°000s £°000s £°000s £°000s
Chief Executive (40) - - 4
Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer (6,640) (316) 1,152 4,326
Director of Operations & Commercial Services (11,936) (5) - 3,458
Director of Corporate Governance (3,397) - - 607
East Kent Shared Services (7,849) - - -
Total (29,862) (321) 1,152 8,395
Revenue from
Contracts Depreciation
2019-20 with Service Interest Interest and
Recipients Revenue Expense Amortisation
Directorate £'000s £°000s £°000s £'000s
Chief Executive 7 - - 5
Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer (4,194) (361) 1,034 6,657
Director of Operations & Commercial Services (12,963) - - 3,650
Director of Corporate Governance (3,268) - - 606
- Dreamland revaluation - - - 19,497
East Kent Shared Services (7,379) - - -
Total (27,811) (361) 1,034 30,415
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7. Other Operating Expenditure

2018-19 2019-20
£'000s £'000s
1,736 Parish Council Precepts 1,847
199 Payments to the Housing Capital Receipts Pool 232
(1,185) (Gains)/Losses on the disposal of non-current assets 1,619
750 Total 3,698

8. Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

2018-19 2019-20
£'000s £'000s
1,152 Interest Payable and Similar Charges 1,034
59 Impairment of Financial Assets 807
2,409 Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability 2,101
(321) Interest Receivable and similar income (361)
42 (Gain)/Loss on Trading Operations (see below) 218
(900) Income and Expenditure on investment properties - Note 21 (689)
142 Changes in fair value of investment properties (1,106)
2,583 Total 2,004

9. Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

2018-19 2019-20
£'000s £000s
(11,570) Council Tax Income (12,075)
(17,516) Non-Domestic Rates Income (15,213)
7,434 Non-Domestic Rates Expenditure (Tariff) 8,432
(1,244) Non Ring Fenced Government Grants - Note 15 (1,076)
(747) Capital Grants and Contributions - Note 15 (2,592)
(23,643) Total (22,524)
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The increase in prior year non-domestic rates income is as a result of participating in the 100% Business Rate Retention Pilot Scheme. This
was a one-off scheme for 2018-19 only.

10. On Street Parking Services

The Council administers and controls the on-street parking services on behalf of Kent County Council. Any surpluses on the account are used
by the Council for future investment in the local transport infrastructure within the area.

2018-19 2019-20
£000s £000s
Net Cost of Service

(621) Brought Forward (975)
1,178 Gross Expenditure 1,542
123 Movement in Provision for unpaid fines (31)
257 Use of Reserve =
(1,912) Gross Income (1,687)
(975) Balance Carried Forward (1,151)

In 2019-20 the Council agreed a four year programme with Kent County Council to invest the funding held in this account in a number of
schemes that will deliver enhanced parking and transport infrastructure for the district.

11. Members’ Allowances

2018-19 2019-20
£'000s £°000s
353 Allowances 355

1 Expenses &

354 Total 355

Member allowances are informed by the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel. These allowances are provided to 56
Members.
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12. Remuneration of Employees

The remuneration paid to the Council’'s senior officers is as follows:

2018-19 Salary Fees & Other Comp. for Total Remun. Pension Total Incl.
allow. Cash loss of excl. pension  contribs pension
Benefits office contribs contribs
Post Holder £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Chief Executive 120,744 1,495 5,000 - 127,239 19,153 146,392
Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer 105,400 891 4,500 - 110,791 16,487 127,278
Director of Corporate Governance 97,500 294 4,000 - 101,794 15,307 117,101
Director of Operations & Commercial Services 97,884 - 4,000 - 101,884 15,308 117,192
Head of Shared Services (1) 77,844 633 3,500 - 81,977 10,742 92,719
Chief Information Officer - ICT (1) 77,217 66 2,750 52,665 132,698 8,111 140,809
Total 576,589 3,379 23,750 52,665 656,383 85,108 741,491

Note 1 - The Head of Shared Services and the Chief Information Officer — ICT were both East Kent Services staff.

2019-20 Salary Fees & Other Comp. for Total Remun. Pension Total incl.

allow. cash loss of excl. pension contribs pension

benefits office contribs contribs

Post Holder £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive (2) 123,948 18,845 5,000 - 147,793 22,365 170,158
Deputy Chief Executive & S151 Officer 107,796 772 4,500 - 113,068 16,924 129,992
Director of Corporate Governance 98,484 624 4,000 - 103,108 15,462 118,570
Director of Operations & Commercial Services 98,484 - 4,000 - 102,484 15,462 117,946
Head of Shared Services (1) 36,256 - 1,604 - 37,860 4,973 42,833
Total 464,968 20,241 19,104 - 504,313 75,186 579,499

Note 1 - The Chief Information Officer post was deleted as part of a restructure in November 2019, no longer being a senior officer post, and
was replaced with the Head of ICT which is not classified as a senior officer post either. The Head of Shared Services left in September 2019
and the Head of Finance & Deputy S151 Officer agreed to take on the additional responsibilities from that point on a part time interim basis with
no additional remuneration (total from Sept 2019 to March 2020 £31,479).
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Note 2 - The increase in fees and allowances for the Chief Executive in 2019-20 primarily relates to payments for their additional responsibilities
as the Returning Officer for a number of elections within this municipal year, including the December 2019 general election and May 2019 local
elections.

The Council's other employees (i.e. those not included in the analysis above) receiving more than £50,000 remuneration for the year (including
compensation for loss of office but excluding employer’s pension contributions) were paid the following amounts:

2018-19 2019-20
Number of Staff Remuneration Band Number of Staff
Total Left during £ Total Left during
year year
5 1 50,000 - 54,999 6 1
5 - 55,000 - 59,999 6 1
1 - 60,000 - 64,999 1 -
2 - 65,000 - 69,999 1 -
2 - 70,000 - 74,999 5 1
- - 75,000 - 79,999 - -
1 - 80,000 - 84,999 - -
- - 85,000 - 89,999 - -
- - 90,000 - 94,999 1 1
16 1 Total 20 4

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the compulsory redundancies and other departures are set out in the
table below:

Bands Number of Number of other Total Number of Total cost of

Compulsory departures packages in each packages in each
Redundancies band band

18-19 19-20 18-19 19-20 18-19 19-20 18-19 19-20
£000 £000
0 - 20,000 2 7 2 2 4 9 22 82
20,001 - 40,000 1 3 - 5 1 8 21 222
40,001 - 60,000 1 1 1 - 2 1 95 58
60,001 - 80,000 - - - - - - - -
80,001 - 100,000 - - - - - - - -
Total Cost Included in Bandings 138 362
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Termination benefits are payable following a decision by the Council to terminate an officer’'s employment before their normal retirement date or
an officer’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits. Costs are charged on an accruals basis to the respective
service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no longer withdraw the offer of the
benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits include the enhancement of pension benefits, regulations require the General Fund to be charged with the amount
payable to the pension fund rather than the amount calculated under accounting standards. Entries are made in the Movement in Reserves
Statement to transfer the accounting standards based entries to the Pension Reserve and replace these with the amount payable to the
pension fund.

The Council terminated the contracts of 18 employees in 2019-20. This included 5 planned redundancies at Ramsgate Port at a cost of £114k
to provide the on-going savings required to balance the 2019-20 budget. It also included 5 redundancies within East Services following a
restructure of the ICT service at a cost of £127k. As this is a shared service with Dover District Council and Canterbury City Council, TDC'’s
share of the redundancies related to this restructure was only £42Kk.

Within the total payment of £362k there were no enhancements of retirement benefits.

13. External Audit Costs

The Council has incurred the following fees in relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims and statutory
inspections and to non-audit services provided by the external auditors.

2018-19 Fees payable to external auditors 2019-20
£'000s £'000s

68 External audit work carried out by the appointed auditor 58

1 Statutory Inspection/Objections =

36 Certification of grant claims and returns 44

105 Total 97
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14. Port and Harbours

Expenditure on harbours includes the Port of Ramsgate, Ramsgate Royal Harbour, Broadstairs and Margate Harbours and is included under
the heading Director of Operations and Commercial Services. The majority of income and expenditure takes place within the Ramsgate
operations.

2018-19 Port of Ramsgate Ramsgate Royal Broadstairs Royal Margate Harbour Total
Harbour Harbour
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Income (1,073) (2,401) (88) (9) (3,571)
Expenditure 3,584 2,695 0 27 6,306
(Surplus)/Deficit 2,511 294 (88) 18 2,735
Less:accounting adjustments

Capital Charges (1,709) (439) 32 2 (2,118)
IAS19 Pension Adjustments (115) (170) (1) 0 (286)
Funding Position - (Surplus)/Deficit 687 (315) (57) 16 331
Corporate Overheads (Included within 87 139 5 1 232
Expenditure)

2019-20 Port of Ramsgate Ramsgate Royal Broadstairs Royal Margate Harbour Total
Harbour Harbour
£000s £000s £000s £'000s £000s

Income (1,502) (2,618) (94) (8) (4,222)
Expenditure 3,341 2,333 47 45 5,766
(Surplus)/Deficit 1,839 (285) (47) 37 1,544
Less:accounting adjustments

Capital Charges (1,513) 25 (10) 2) (1,500)
IAS19 Pension Adjustments (136) (259) (2) (1) (398)
Funding Position - (Surplus)/Deficit 190 (519) (59) 34 (354)
Corporate Overheads (Included within 87 129 7 1 224

Expenditure)
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The tab